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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEREREEB I RED

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, the trading of rubber and food products. The
Group deploys financial resource to securities investment and fund
investment to achieve earnings in the form of capital appreciation
and income from dividends. The Group also taps into the business of
financial services through the investment in a securities house.

As mentioned in 2019 annual report of the Company, the outbreak
of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) has brought about uncertainties in
the Group’s operating environment in the PRC in 2020. Since the
COVID-19 pandemic, the PRC Government has taken emergency
measures to prevent the spread of the COVID-19 in the PRC,
including, among others, imposing restriction on work resumption
date after the statutory holidays for Chinese New Year. Although the
factories of the Group have resumed since the end of February 2020,
there were a significant drop in revenue of manufacturing and sale of
nonwoven fabric products during the year ended 31 December 2020
as the customers generally adopted a wait-and-see approach to place
orders. The Board expects that the event may continue to affect the
Group's business performance in 2021.

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
products

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products is one of
the principal business of the Group. The Group manufactures its
products with single layer or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in
accordance with specific requirements and standards of different
customers. Most of the customers of nonwoven fabric products are
primary manufacturers and suppliers of automotive parts in the PRC.
The majority of the Group's products are further processed by these
customers in order to make different automotive parts such as floor,
head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk, luggage-side trim, hubcap
and car-mat, which are of different characteristics and are to be
applied for different usages in passenger vehicles.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

According to the statistics released from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers (“CAAM"), the production and sales of
passenger vehicles in the PRC were approximately 19,994,000 units
and 20,178,000 units respectively for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing a decrease of approximately 6.5% and 6.0%.
Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and as a result of increasing
competition in the automotive industry, the total revenue of this
business operation decreased by approximately 40.9% to RMB108.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Supply and procurement operation

The Group commenced its business of rubber trading since 2012
and the quoted price of rubber was generally varied according to
the tendency of the commodities markets. To manage the risk, the
Group mainly carried out that business in back-to-back model. As
the significant fluctuation in price of top commodities, crude oil, the
Group only accepted the orders with lower default risk.

Since 2016, the Group resumed the business of trading of food
products such as dairy products, flour-based products and nuts
which generated steady income to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Interest in associates

The Company through a joint venture company indirectly hold 42%
of the equity interest in GEO Securities Limited (“GEO Securities”)
and classified as “interest in an associate” at 31 December 2020.
GEO Securities has the licenses to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities under the Securities and Future
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong.
The Group shared a profit of an associate of approximately RMB2.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Placing of convertible bonds

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which it agreed to procure
independent placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$5,971,968 (the “2020 CB") issued
by the Company (the “Placing”). On 7 July 2020, the Placing was
completed. Net proceeds from the Placing was approximately HK$5.8
million (the “Net Proceeds”) which was intended to be used for the
general working capital of the Group and repayment of existing
liabilities. At 31 December 2020, the Net Proceeds were fully utilized
as to (i) approximately HK$2.5 million for the repayment of the then
existing corporate liabilities; and (i) approximately HK$3.3 million for
general working capital of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 was illustrated as follows:

Bt % 1B B
A

BE_T-_ZEFR-_F-NF+_A=t1t—HLE
FE- $%IE’JH&)\$X§IJZZDT-

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—-BLEFE

2020 2019
—ECoEE —h&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARET T

Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles B RERES M
— Sales of automotive floor carpets —REMBMEE 40,027 69,201
— Sales of other automotive parts —Hi T BREREE 68,668 114,834
Sales of rubber BRBHEE 8,366 1,844
Sales of food products RmMHEE 24,565 75,017
141,626 260,896

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue
decreased to approximately RMB141.6 million, compared to
approximately RMB260.9 million in 2019, representing a decrease
of approximately 45.7%. The decrease in the Group’s revenue was
mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue of manufacturing
and sale of nonwoven fabric products and trading of food products
which affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's gross profit
decreased by approximately 43.7% to approximately RMB13.5
million. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s
revenue.

Other gain or losses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s other gain or
losses increased by approximately RMB5.6 million from approximately
RMBO.3 million in 2019 to approximately RMB5.9 million in 2020.
The increase was mainly due to fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB2.5 million
in 2020. The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was
mainly composed of a discretionary investment fund (”Discretionary
Fund”). Details of the Discretionary Fund are disclosed under the
section “SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS”.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses in 2019 included impairment loss recognised
on the interest in an associate of approximately RMB5.5 million. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, as no impairment loss recognised
on the interests in an associate and the tightening in the control of
cost and expense of the Group, the Group's administrative expenses
decreased by approximately RMB24.9 million to approximately
RMB15.7 million.

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB3.9 million for the year of 2020 compared with a
loss of approximately RMB30.2 million for the corresponding period
of 2019. The change was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s
administrative expenses as a result of the tightening in the control of
cost and expense of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The Board expects that 2021 will be a challenging year for the
business of manufacturing and sale of nonwoven fabric products
as the continuously increase in production costs for maintaining
competitiveness and enhancing safety requirements to cope with the
development of the automotive industry.

To maintain competitiveness, the Group will still deploy its resources
on:

(1) upgrading the production lines in order to improve the
production efficiency;

(2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demands on high-end products;

(3) conducting research and development to keep up with
the latest technological trends in relation to product
specifications; and

4) strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer
loyalty and reinforce the Group’s reputation in the nonwoven
fabric industry in the PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

Furthermore, in order to diversify the Group’s existing business
portfolio and broaden its source of income, the Group entered
into a strategic cooperative agreement with an interior decoration
components supplier of an automotive manufacturer under the brand
"FAW Toyota” (the “Components Supplier”) in July 2020 in relation
to the supply of the nonwoven fabric related automotive components
(the “Automotive Components”) by the Group to the Components
Supplier. In order to meet the supply requirements, the Group would
set up new production lines in Jilin Province, the PRC (the “New
Production Lines”) in the second quarter of 2021 to prepare for
the commencement of a larger-scale production of the Automotive
Components in the second half of 2021.

As a result of the increasing risk of volatility in rubber price since
the fluctuation in price of crude oil, the Group would be cautious in
accepting orders to avoid any downside exposure. For the business
of trading of food products, the Group will continue to find new
customers to strengthen its customer base.

In addition, the Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach to
manage its money lending business and on the other hands to seek
for opportunities to expand this operation.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and enhancing
the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for potential
investment opportunities to diversify its business scope.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the general meeting held on 23 December 2019 and
an order given by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands, the share
with a par value of HK$0.5 each in the share capital of the Company
was reduced from HK$0.5 each to HK$0.005 each by cancelling the
paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.495 on each
share with effect from 3 March 2020.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the general meeting held on 28 September 2020 (the
"EGM"), every five issued and unissued shares with a par value of
HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one share with a par value of HK$0.025 in the share capital of
the Company with effect from 30 September 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing during 2020. Owing to the COVID-19,
most of the Group’s long-term customers have generally requested a
delay in repayment of the Group’s receivables which exacerbated the
cash outflow position of the Group. On 7 July 2020, the convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$6.0
million have been issued by the Company. At 31 December 2020,
cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB26.8 million (2019: RMB26.1 million), and approximately
RMB15.7 million (2019: RMB19.2 million) of which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's liquidity ratio, represented by
the ratio of current assets over current liabilities, and gearing ratio,
represented by the ratio of total liabilities to total assets, were 1.81
(2019: 1.75) and 0.44 (2019: 0.45) respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except for those disclosed under the section “CAPITAL
REORGANISATION”and the 2020 CB was converted into 79,626,240
shares of the Company during September 2020, there has been
no material change in the capital structure of the Group since
31 December 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. At
31 December 2020, the Group had no significant exposure under
foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2020, the Group held Discretionary Fund as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The investment in the
Discretionary Fund was approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the general meeting of the Company held on 16 February 2016.
The Discretionary Fund is managed by a corporation licensed under
the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The investment objective of the Discretionary Fund
is to generate income and/or achieve capital appreciation through
investing in a variety of the authorized investments.

Except the Discretionary Fund, at 31 December 2020, there was no
investment held by the Group which value was more than 5% of the
net assets of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

Details of the Discretionary Fund are as follows:

Year ended

31 December
2020
HE-Z-ZF
+T=ZR=+—-H
LEE

Fair Value gain

AP E RS
RMB’000
ARBT R

Discretionary Fund 2,831

[ICE-5A

Looking ahead, the value of the Discretionary Fund may be
susceptible to the overall equity market conditions.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, the Group's buildings with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB5.1 million (2019: RMB5.4 million)
and leasehold land with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB2.4
million (2019: RMB2.5 million) were pledged to banks for bank
borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 220
employees (2019: 202). The remuneration policy of the employees of
the Group was set up by the Board on the basis of their experience,
qualifications and competence. Other employees’ benefits include
contributions to statutory mandatory provident funds, and social
insurance together with housing provident funds to its employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing the
Group’s remuneration policy and structure for all directors and senior
management of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business
partners and investors for their support and trust towards the Group.
Further, I would like to express my sincere thanks to our Directors
and employees for their dedications and contributions to the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

FESEAHEEER QA

nS

AANERKRAEER HIBEAAERBZAERP
EBBHEREEHAEENIFMETBUAR
DR E  WIN RATRROEHRMANES RIE
BHAKEELNB HMER -

HIEE
FERTTHABE,

B —E-—F=ZA=+NH



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEENBERER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and founder of the Group. He
was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April 2010. He has
over 15 years of experience in the nonwoven textile industry. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s corporate strategy,
overseeing its production operations and the overall steering of the
Group's strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981
and was approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate
Level Adjudication Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering
Department in 1990. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the
director and the general manager of Xiamen Marine Industries
(Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated company and was
previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director
and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate Governance
Degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He has extensive experience in accounting and
corporate compliance.

Ms. Xiao Suni, aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director on
14 October 2014. She has over 10 years of experience in the field
of international trading and marketing. She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Nanjing Army Command College, the PRC with major
in English. Prior to joining the Group, she worked for a door-window
manufacturer in the PRC as foreign trade manager, in which her
responsibilities focused on overall management of foreign sales and
marketing.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is a practising certified public
accountant and has more than 20 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing.

Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 September 2015. Ms. Ng has over 10
years of experience in human resources and corporate management.
Ms. Ng obtained a Certificate of Human Resources Management from
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2011 and was a senior administrative
officer of a renowned international information technology company
in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zhu Chunyan, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 September 2016. Ms. Zhu was graduated
from Xiangtan University, China, with a bachelor’s degree majoring in
finance and accounting in July 1999. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked for a sizable travel related services company in the PRC as an
accountant and gained extensive knowledge in corporate finance and
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Han Zhiqing, aged 67, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd.
("Joystar Wuxi”) since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers” University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr. Han
has over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use textile
industry.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 46, is the manager of the accounting
department of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the financial
reporting and the management of the accounting and finance
department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional issued
by the Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the Qualification
Certificate of Specialty and Technology with specialty in accountancy
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 1997 and 2006
respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed an online diploma programme in
accountancy from China Agricultural University. She has 18 years of
experience in financial accounting and reporting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2020. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1, A.6.7 and
E.1.2, the Company complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such deviation from
Code provision A.2.1 is deemed appropriate as it is considered to
be more efficient to have one single person as the Chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of a
chief executive officer, and it provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of long
term business strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are
three independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them
possess adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient protection
of its interests.

Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting and non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. Owing
to other business engagements, the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Zhang Yue Jin was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of Company held on 30 June 2020 (the "AGM"), Mr. Mak Wai
Ho was unable to attend the EGM, and Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and
Ms. Zhu Chunyan, were unable to attend the AGM and the EGM.
However, the senior management and the executive Directors of
the Company subsequently reported to them on the enquiries from
the shareholders of the Company in the general meetings for them
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERHE (A)

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings concerning
securities transactions by the Directors during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2020, the Board comprises three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 12 to 13 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
o Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group’s business operations;

o Evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives,
and ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems are in places;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EEER®RE (A)

o Material acquisitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
significant capital expenditure;

o Appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members
and auditors;

o Remuneration of Directors;

o Communications with key stakeholders;

o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final
dividends.

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates
day-to-day activities to the management with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. The non-executive
Directors serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance and risk management
of the Group through their contributions in board meetings. They are
also serving on remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee.

During the year, the Board complies with the requirement of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors do not hold any management position in the Group. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERHE (A)

The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall
business, development strategy, operations and financial reporting
of the Company. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. During the year ended
31 December 2020, five Board meetings and two general meetings
were held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

No. of attendance

General Board
Members meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 0/2 5/5
Mr. Wong Ho Yin 2/2 5/5
Ms. Xiao Suni 0/2 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 1/2 3/5
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 0/2 3/5
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 0/2 3/5

The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting respectively.
The company secretary will distribute relevant documents to the
Directors in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties
to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary prepares minutes
of the Board meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The company secretary
also keeps the minutes of the Board meetings, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single
person as the Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the
executive functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development
and execution of long-term business strategies. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations of the Board which comprises highly experienced
individuals. There are three independent non-executive Directors on
the Board. All of them possess adequate independence and therefore
the Board considers the Company has achieved balance and provided
sufficient protection of its interests.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

According to the Company'’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. A Director appointed
since the most recent annual general meeting shall hold office
only until the next general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election. The independent non-executive Directors were appointed
at specific terms for one year.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable training
or read relevant materials in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has received from each Director
a confirmation of their participation in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EEER®RE (A)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board and maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity properties of the Board that are
relevant to the business growth of the Company. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

At the date of this report, the composition of the Board under
diversified perspectives was summarized as follows:

Executive Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the terms of remuneration
packages, determining the award of bonuses and considering the
grant of options under the share option scheme of the Company.
At 31 December 2020, the remuneration committee comprises one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the
remuneration committee) and Ms. Zhu Chunyan.

During the year, two meetings was held by the remuneration
committee to discuss, among other things, the remuneration policy
of the Group and determine the remuneration of the Directors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

Members No. of attendance

Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. In reviewing and accessing the composition
of the Board and the nomination of Directors, Board diversity
has to be considered through a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.
The nomination committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (chairman of the nomination committee), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline.

During the year, two meetings was held by the nomination
committee to, among other things, review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors. The nomination
committee also reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its
effectiveness and considered the Group achieved the policy since its
adoption. The following table shows the attendance of individual
members at the meeting held during the year:
Members No. of attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. At 31 December 2020, the audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai
Ho (chairman of the audit committee), Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and
Ms. Zhu Chunyan.

During the year, two meetings were held by the audit committee.
The following table shows the attendance of individual members at
the meetings held during the year:

No. of attendance

Members

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 2/2

During the year, the audit committee, among other things, reviewed
the interim and annual reports as well as result announcements
before submission to the Board. The audit committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and the legal requirements in review of the Company’s
interim and annual reports as well as result announcements. The
audit committee also reviewed the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and make recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules, and
the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and also reviews any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors for the Group, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. During the year, the auditors performed the
work of statutory audit for the year of 2020. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the remuneration payable and paid to the
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited were as follows:

EZIR®
FEZIRES

Audit services
Non-audit services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness to safeguard the Group’s assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate business risk; to help safeguard the
Group's assets against fraud and other irregularities; and to give
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, which included the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper dissemination
via the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has engaged an external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year ended
31 December 2020. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board considered the Group's internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the code
provisions on risk management and internal control as set out in the
Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is also responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. As an employee of the
Company, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, the company secretary of the Company,
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge in 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedure for nominating a new Director

Pursuant to Article 83(2) of the articles of association of the
Company (the "Articles”), subject to the Articles and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

Procedure for convening an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholder
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedure for sending enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect of
their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong and for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include the
publication of annual and interim reports, notices, announcements,
circulars and constitutional documents, the Company’s website at
www.hklistco.com/48 and meetings with investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meeting to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
It provides an opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders. The chairman of the meeting explains
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any
questions from shareholders. The poll results are published on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board does not aware of any changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group.
The auditors of the Company is responsible to form an independent
opinion based on the audit, on the financial statements prepared by
the Directors and report the opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESERSE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, and the trading of rubber and food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement & Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 11 of this report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 47 and 48 of this report.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the statement of financial position on pages 49 to 50 of this report and
in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of Financial
Information” on page 152 of this report.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 51 of this report. The movements in the
reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to owners of the Company comprising share premium
account amounted to approximately RMBNil (2019: RMBNil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend policy
(the “Dividend Policy”) in January 2019. The Company endeavours
to maintain adequate working capital to develop and operate the
business of the Group and to provide stable and sustainable returns
to the shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of the Group,
the general market conditions, any working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future development plans of
the Group, the liquidity position of the Group, contractual restrictions
on payment of dividends, the statutory and regulatory restrictions
which the Group is subject to from time to time and any other
relevant factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record in the
past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of dividends may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserve the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in
no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 36.3% (2019: 47.4%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 11.3% (2019: 15.4%) of total sales. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 31.2% (2019: 43%) of total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
15.7% (2019: 20%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during
the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group.

Reliance on major customers

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 36.3% (2019: 47.4%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 11.3% (2019: 15.4%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the Group
is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume and
profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.
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Reliance on raw materials

The Group’s production requires large quantities of raw materials,
which are mainly artificial and synthetic fibres, for the production of
nonwoven fabric. There is no assurance that the Group will always be
able to secure an adequate supply of raw materials at commercially
viable prices to meet the Group's future production requirements.
Moreover, fluctuations in the prices of the raw materials may increase
the cost of inventories sold and reduce the gross profit and gross
margin of the Group.

Reliance on limited number of suppliers

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 31.2% (2019: 43%) of total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 15.7% (2019: 20%) of total purchases. If any of
these suppliers do not continue to supply materials and goods to
the Group at favourable or similar prices or at all, the Group may
not be able to find another suitable replacement supplier in a timely
manner or on terms acceptable to the Group or at all, and the
Group's business, results of operations and financial condition could
be adversely affected.

Other financial risks

The Group also faces other financial risks in the ordinary course of
business. Details of financial risk management objectives and policies
are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
its employees. The Group continues to provide training for its staff
to enhance technical and product knowledge as well as knowledge
of industry quality standards. The Group maintains good working
relationships with its employees and has not experienced any material
disruption of its normal business operations due to strikes or labour
disputes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s good relationship with its
customers depends on its ability to produce reliable products for
its customers. The Group conducts surveys on customers’ feedback
on the Group's products, the results of which will be analyzed and
used to formulate measures of improvement. This provides a channel
for the Group’s customers to monitor the quality of the Group's
products.
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The Group’'s major suppliers of its principal business are
manufacturers of artificial and synthetic fibers being the Group’s
primary raw materials. The Directors consider that the reliability of
suppliers are essential to maintaining an efficient production process
of the Group. The Group has laid down detailed supplier selection
procedures, and conducts reviews on its suppliers regularly and also
upon any material changes in the suppliers’ delivery period, quality
of supply, price and service.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Committed to minimizing any environmental impact caused by its
production (such as noise, sewage and exhaust gas), the Group
adopts quality control measures and a comprehensive environmental
management system to ensure that the Group manufactures quality
products with minimum impacts on the environment. Meanwhile,
concerning environmental conservation, the Group follows the
internal guiding principles set out below in operating its business:

o to be committed to complying with relevant laws and
regulations;

o to strengthen the training of staff so that they all participate in
protecting the environment;

o to continuously improve and implement daily environmental
monitoring, review and management so as to prevent pollution;
and

. to economize on the consumption of resources.

Further details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2020 to be published within three
months from the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group work closely with its advisers and auditors to review the
Group's affairs and ensure full compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself
is listed on the Stock Exchange. As far as the Company is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Ms, Ng Li La, Adeline
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company's articles of association,
Mr. Mak Wai Ho and Ms, Ng Li La, Adeline shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors are
eligible for re-elections.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Information of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12 to
14 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
by the remuneration committee of the Company and approved
by the Board, having regard to the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group; the
Company's operating results and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 5 June 2015 to which the Directors and eligible employees,
among others are entitled to participate in. The Company operates
the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Details of the Scheme are set out in the section “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 36 to 38 of this report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2020, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions of which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO) or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EEREEESME AN LM

AEBZzEERTERSHEATHHINFEBS
RIFE T RERME15K%16 °

EERRSTHRAERES HER
REEENEDS
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RAIEBERESITHRABRAR A 5 H (F ] 48 8 %
B(ExRBARAEGRO([EHFRBEBKA])
EXVEMARMD HERO REEES HEERE
BHEMBEKROIEXVIBETRSDIBBEMNE AR R
DTSR AR (BEREBEESREEEH
ERABKENEESHEEREE AR TRERS R
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TMRAM IO EMBITAESTETEFRINIE
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RERBDROREBRG 2F A

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage
Capacity and nature unlisted ordinary of shareholding
Name of interest shares option shares held Total in the Company
EERAT
RKEWE BREZ
HH& B RESNMEE REHE FBEZERHKE st MABDH
Director
BEF
Zhuang Yuejin Beneficial owner 796,000 14,374,800 15,170,800 15.88%
T B BEnER A
Wong Ho Yin Beneficial owner 796,000 = 796,000 0.83%
wEEN BEnfERA
Xiao Suni Beneficial owner 796,000 - 796,000 0.83%
H &R I BEnfER A
Zhu Chunyan Beneficial owner 796,000 - 796,000 0.83%
KRB EnfER A
FESEAHEEER AR —E_ZFEH
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in the Company
or any body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS

IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on
page 33 of this report, at 31 December 2020, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any persons who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company in
accordance with the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on page
33 of this report, at no time during the year was the Company, or
its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no material
transactions with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2020
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, the Directors and
every one of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which the Directors or any of
them, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date of
the Scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options
to the eligible participants, including but not limited to, any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether independent or
not) and any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any other person, who has contributed to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme.
The limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit
must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. At 31 December 2020, an aggregate of 12,760,000
share options granted under the Scheme remained outstanding,
which represented approximately 13.4% of the issued share capital
of the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

On 15 May 2020, an aggregate of 39,800,000 share options granted
under the Scheme to the eligible participants and the closing price of
the shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted was HK$0.078.
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The movements in the Company’s share options granted to the
eligible participants during the year ended 31 December 2020 were
as follows:

Category 1:
B
Directors
Bz

Zhuang Yugjin
fig:3 4

Wong Ho Yin

0
fli/%f}\i

Xiao Suni

EEf

Zhu Chunyan

RER

Category 2:
Bl
Employees
RAKES

Total
5t

ot

38

Date of grant

RaRH

15 May 2020
ZRCFERATERA

15 May 2020
ZECZERATRRA

15 May 2020
“E-REIATRA

15 May 2020
ZRCEFRATERA

Total Directors

R

31 May 2017
ZE-tFRAZ1-A

14 November 2017
“§-LF{-F1mA

4 April 2019
“E-NEMARA

15 May 2020
ZE-RFRATHEA

Total Employees
R

Exercise price
before share
consolidation

0.085

0.085

0.085

0.085

0.721

0.562

0.500

0.085

Exercise price

after share
consolidation
HKS
BHR&HEN
iy 3

B

=

0425

0425

0425

0425

2810

2500

0425

AABEREMBEARABREBE "S-
FT-A=TALEERZEBMT:

Movement during the year
EngD

Adjustment  Outstanding at
Outstanding at upon share 31 December
1 January 2020 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  consolidation 2020 Exercise period
et ut 13 gt - 3:3
-A-H ) N Rfaf®  t-A=t-8
HATE BEY gfifE B BAX pES HATE fTRA
- 3,980,000 - - - (3,184,000) 796,000 15 May 2020 to
14 May 2022
ZE-ZERATRAE
“E-CERATMA
- 3,980,000 - - - (3,184,000) 796,000 15 May 2020 to
14 May 2022
ZE-ZERATRAR
ZZ§RRTRA
- 3,980,000 - - - (3,184,000) 796,000 15 May 2020 to
14 May 2022
ZF-FFLATIRE
Z3C--FRATEA
- 3,980,000 - - - (3,184,000) 796,000 15 May 2020 to
14 May 2022
“3-TERATRAE
ZECZERATRA
- 15,920,000 - - - (12,736,000) 3,184,000
11,040,000 - - - (11,040,000 - - 31 May 2017 to
30 May 2027
Z2-t£RAZ+-HE
ZECtFRACTA
39,800,000 - = - (30,248,000) (9,552,000) - 14 November 2017 to
13 November 2027
“E-tE+-ATMAZ
ZRoEET-A1ER
24,000,000 - - - - (19,200,000) 4,800,000 4 April 2019 to
3 April 2029
ZE-NERARER
—RCNEBRAZR
- 23,880,000 - - - (19,104,000) 4,776,000 15 May 2020 to
14 May 2022
ZERATIAZ
S-ZFARTRA
74,840,000 23,880,000 - - (41,288,000) (47,856,000) 9,576,000
74,840,000 39,800,000 - - (41,288,000 (60,592,000) 12,760,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED




DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEWRE (&

Note:

During the year, the Company implemented the share consolidation of
every five shares of par value of HK$0.005 each into one Consolidated
Share of par value of HK$0.025 each (“Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation were effective from 30 September 2020. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Scheme, the exercise price and the number of
the outstanding share options granted under the Share Option Scheme have
been adjusted accordingly with effect from 30 September 2020.

The closing price of the Company immediately before the date on which the
share options were granted on 15 May 2020 was HK$0.078.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 February 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best
endeavour basis, up to 71,663,616 placing shares, to not less than
six placees who and whose beneficial owners are Independent Third
Parties at a price of HK$0.32 per placing share. The placing shares
will be allotted and issued pursuant to the specific mandate to be
obtained at the extraordinary meeting to be held on 15 April 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AR

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 47 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were #x#RA R E (B
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

HREXSEE

RERMANFERHE BREZSASRMATER
AHENGEEMBRERTREZNFTR -RMAESE
BB ERERER
BHEEHE MIAERLEETRERRRER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Refer to note 5 and note 18 of the consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB44,382,000, which mainly
comprised buildings of approximately RMB5,095,000 and
plant and machinery of approximately RMB36,881,000. A
recent history of losses of the subsidiaries of the Group is an
indicator of impairment of property, plant and equipment
and hence impairment assessment is required.

HREREE
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RESENHEESE A

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

o Evaluating the independent valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based on our
knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and

industry; and

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found that the assumptions made by management
for impairment assessment were supportable by available

evidence.
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Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables
Refer to note 5 and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB144,989,000 and provision
for impairment of approximately RMB16,377,000.

FEWE ZHIEZ RAIE BRI
A2 HEE B MKRMESR23

RZE-_EF+-_A=+—H BEE£BENEKESXK
TEETELN A ANREM144,989,00070 R EBEHEH ARK
16,377,0007T °

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 included:

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls
that the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk, and validating the control
effectiveness on a sample basis;

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;
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SHRBEBEN G ZRFEHE:

o THRIFM BEEEEMOMBEGIATERER
HEERR WmEE BB

o ERWMENE REHBAVBRETR_T_FF
TZA=+t—RARKRESHRENREERRFRR
HERITURAEE
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In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 120 days. Management
performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision for
impairment based on information including credit profile of
different customers, ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding balances,
and on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables under the expected credit losses model
involved the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.

EEBBRERFELNTI0HER1I20BN EEH - EHEE
RTAREBEFPHNEEBL EBRESTEMNERE BRALERL
B EAERE ERALERENBHSERSENSE
TRBEFHBEERSEEREEN THTHEKRE S B
WEMEREREEC R EEENERAETHERF
EEREHLEBNENOATIEEER UWETREFGHNTE
HEEERE-

R ZES SRR EREEBARRE TRKE SR
TE A RE T R B IR B 1 E A M R A E

RESENHEESE A

o Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such
as performing public search of credit profile of
selected customers, understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

o Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables
and determine the impairment provision were supportable
by available evidence.

L]
oup
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Tien Sun Kit, Jack.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tien Sun Kit, Jack
Practising Certificate Number: P07364

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREsEREMEEHKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—FE_TFEf =+ HIFFZ

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs

Share of result of an associate

Net allowance for expected credit losses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

FESEAHEEER QA

L'ON
HHE RN

E7
H Wz s B 18

HERD KA

i el R WNCIE i

EREEERREFR

TTHRAX

REER
B E R

BB ATEE
FIRER %1%

FRAAEEABREFERR

Note
B at

10

11
12

13

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
141,626 260,896
(128,141) (236,956)
13,485 23,940
5,872 271
(4,014) (8,906)
2,622 3,362
(6,097) (7,356)
(15,681) (40,592)
(3,813) (29,281)
(2,473) (2,201)
(6,286) (31,482)
2,396 1,306
(3.890) (30,176)
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48

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

mEeBERHMEEKER (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of income tax:

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation
from functional currency to
presentation currency

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total other comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to the owners of
the Company

Loss per share
— Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note
b &t

FEBR
FEAt2E (BB) Wi
MBRFABHE
TEENSBEHEEMNER:

BENREREE2RER Y
EXERE

HEUTEH I BEZHERMNER

BEBINRBZELEZR

FEAMRAE (BR) WEEHE

RAREEAREFESRE
BRAR

BRER
—BEARNEE 14

BEMTRIPH SE AR SR A M B MR AR S -
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2020 2019
i —FNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
(3,890) (30,176)
(3,299) -

788 4,674
(2,511) 4,674
(6,401) (25,502)
RMB RMB
AR¥ AR
(Restated)

(&&E5)

(4.6) cents &

(37.9) cents 5>
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2020
REZFZFFf=ZH=4—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

g3 AR®T R ARMT T

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 18 44,382 50,160
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 8,551 7,102
Interest in an associate NE L AFIHER 21 13,714 12,366
Deferred tax assets BEREEAE 34 3,943 1,875
70,590 71,503
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 22 31,183 32,599
Trade receivables BN E 5 FIE 23 128,612 123,257
Bills receivables B Uk 2= 1% 6,783 7,369
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE ke REM
other receivables JFE U R IE 24 24,174 38,318
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEREBERYEN
profit or loss EEEE 25 27,142 23,415
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITE R 26 26,820 26,101
244,714 251,059
Total assets EEHE 315,304 322,562
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable KATEE AEAE
to the owners of the Company BERXRFEE
Share capital & A< 27 1,984 163,359
Reserves i 28 174,080 12,754
Total equity EREE 176,064 176,113
FRESEAGERMAR LA —E_Z5H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
e MBI (&)

As at 31 December 2020
REZFZFFf=ZH=4—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

iog=3 AR®T R ARMT T

LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liability FREBAE
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 3,727 3,262
3,727 3,262
Current liabilities FEBaE
Trade payables ERE S IE 29 25,802 30,563
Accruals and other payables JEET B A K H B BB 30 11,408 17,282
Contract liabilities AHEE 37 20,110 16,086
Bank borrowings RITER 32 40,000 40,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 2,608 1,477
Tax payable FERTTE 1A 35,585 37,779
135,513 143,187
Total liabilities EEEH 139,240 146,449
Total equity and liabilities EnRkAELAE 315,304 322,562
Net current assets RBEEFSE 109,201 107,872
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 179,791 179,375
Net assets EEFH 176,064 176,113
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and signed —Z - —F#=ZA -+ AHAEEEHELH T
on its behalf by: ATREEE:
Zhuang Yuejin Wong Ho Yin
GERRE EER
Director Director
EZ EZ

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BEMEIPT 3T Rk Eima B R AR LD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘l_\ é *E ﬁ ﬁ

B*x

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—FE_TFEf =+ HIFFZ

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Loss for the year
Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Share based payment expenses
Transfer of share option reserve
upon the lapse of share options

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Loss for the year
Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Share based payment expenses

Transfer of share option reserve
upon the lapse of share options

Capital reduction (note 27)

Issue of convertible bonds

Issue of shares upon conversion of
convertible bonds

Initial recognition of deferred tax liabilities
from convertible bonds

At 31 December 2020

BEMRP E AR SRS

Convertible Foreign Retained
bonds-equity currency Share profits/
Share Share Merger component translation option Statutory  (Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
TERES- REEN/
& REEE AHRE BEBABE EREBE  BREGR iERE  (BHER) RELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETR ARETR ARETR AERETTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note 28) (Note 28) (Note 35) (Note 28) (Note 41) (Note 28)
(Hi#28) (Hi228) (H#35) (Hi228) (K1) (Hi28)
RZB-NEF+ZA=t-RR
—Z-h§-A-H 163,359 137,996 5,992 S 34,726 21,353 11,818 (176,495) 198,749
FEFR = = = = = = = (30,176) (30,176)
REBNEBZERES
- - - - 4,674 - - - 4,674
FEEABREE - - - - 4,674 - - (30,176) (25,502)
RAFRAZ = S o S o 2,866 o = 2,866
BREXABERERERE
_ _ - - = (6,102) S 6,102 -
RZE-AETZA=+-BR
ZZ-%5-f-8 163,359 137,99 5992 S 39,400 18,117 11,818 (200,569) 176,113
FEER S S S S - S = (3,890) (3,890)
RN ERZERZE
o S S = (2,511) = S S (2,511)
FEREFRER S S S o (2,511) - - (3,890) (6,401)
RAARA = = = S = 1,002 - - 1,002
BREXINERERERE
_ - 5 & - (15,251) - 15,251 >
ERHIR (K27) (161,725) 161,725 = = s 5 - - R
ETakEs - - - 2,559 - - - - 2,559
SRTERESHETREG
350 5,000 - 2,137 - - - - 3213
NeERTRRESH
EEnEak o s o (422) - o o - (422)
RZF-F5+-A=1-A 1,984 304,721 5992 = 36,889 3,868 11,818 (189,208) 176,064
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
MGz AB LD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 ARBF ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax RELAIE R (6,286) (31,482)
Adjustments for: AT HIEELAE:
Interest expenses FERXE 12 2,473 2,201
Interest income MEMA 10 (37) (50)
Allowance for expected credit losses on EWE S FIENTEREEER 11
trade receivables B 14,031 5,301
Reversal of allowance for expected credit EWE S FIENEREEER 11
losses on trade receivables BB (6,748) (265)
Allowance for expected credit losses on Hih e amEHEEER 11
other receivables B 1,155 2,346
Reversal of allowance for expected HEERRIBENEREEEE 11
credit losses on other receivables BB (2.341) (26)
Write-down of inventories 15 & Hf 11 493 299
Depreciation of property, plant and M HEMRRETE 11
equipment 6,058 6,281
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 11 2,238 1,886
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at R AFENIBZEINENE 7 10
fair value through profit or loss BEMATE (W) EBE (2,518) 6,713
Share of result of an associate N e 21 (2,622) (3,362)
Impairment loss on interest in associate REgEE R R R s 2 R E B R 11 - 5,520
Share-based payment expenses & 13 1~ R =2 11 1,002 2,866
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - -BERREB 11
plant and equipment &8, (Was) 12 (90)
Operating cash flow before investments in B & & E BRI E D
working capital changes wERenE 6,910 (1,862)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (Em) 923 (970)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 FRIR L AN (12,638) (9,236)
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivables FEWEER A, (3Em) 586 (2,286)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, ERRIE -ZeER
deposits and other receivables H e R IER A (18 n) 15,330 (1,645)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ENES%E CRd) m (4,761) 6,314
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FEET B A & H fh FE A 5B
other payables CR ) /1 (5,874) 3,723
Increase in contract liabilities ARG EM 4,024 4,108
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations #& & fr18, (FrF )R & /558 4,500 (1,854)
Income taxes refund/(paid) RE/ (B ATEH 294 (341)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBME (AR FE
operating activities 4,794 (2,195)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
mEBRSRER (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B2 —E_FTF+ - H="1+—HIFEF
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B at ARBF ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B UF B 10 37 50
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE W% - BE L& E (292) (7,481)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB RRBSHIE
plant and equipment - 3,364
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATFERERYESN
through profit or loss TREE (2.866) S
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATFERERYIRD
at fair value through profit or loss B RE E S RIA - 1,070
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBAA S FE (3,121) (2,997)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings &R 15 51 56,000 40,000
Repayment of borrowings EEER (56,000) (40,000)
Repayment of interest on borrowings EEBERFE (1,911) (1,911)
Repayment of capital element of EBEHEBBENERT D
lease liabilities (2,095) (1,682)
Repayment of interest on lease liabilities BEBEEENR (283) (290)
Repayment of interest on convertible bonds & i& A] # J (& 5 71 8, (279) =
Issue of convertible bonds BATRAIR ARG 5 5,391 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEFBMGE (AR FE
financing activities 823 (3,883)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERBESEEY
cash equivalents #in/ORd) 8 2,496 (9,075)
Cash and cash equivalents REVHNRERRSEEY
at the beginning of the year 26,101 32,381
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate INEEREFHNTE
changes (1,777) 2,795
Cash and cash equivalents REANBRERESESEY
at the end of the year 26 26,820 26,101
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BEMT B s AR E R E MBS MER AR » -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE
1.

54

SR A=t AR
GENERAL INFORMATION

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was a public limited company incorporated in
Cayman Islands on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2000 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands, and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, who is also the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts, trading of rubber and food
products.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). However, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), as the directors of the
Company consider that RMB is the functional currency of
the primary economic environment in which most of the
Group’s transactions are denominated and settled in and
this presentation is more useful for its current and potential
investors. The consolidated of financial statements are
presented in thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

2.1 New and Amendments to HKFRSs that

ERAMIREEBITIEEMBRE
ZA([ERMBHREER])

2.1 REAFERBERNHTRES

are mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
“"Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business
— Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the “Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHITRKBITIEEBMBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEER (BB HEREED])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#&)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 22 EEMEMKRERZFHITREE

issue but not yet effective HERCLIE £ 83

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBRREANKWATE EMHE

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are REBZFIIREETBEAYHRE

not yet effective: AR

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and EBMBREENEITR RRAOK
the related Amendments' BB

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent ERUBREEANF 6% MUBRESHEEN
Concessions* CHES! HEER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual ERUBREERNENT BoMERZRR
Framework? CHES)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BEEUBREENESR MEEAEEE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2° BRGIERF395% -F B
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 ERMBREENETR

BB B RS EREAR
RE B RS &R
F16% (EFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of EEMBRELENEI05 REZHABL NG

and HKAS 28 Assets between an REBGTENELE RAELCEZRHN
Investor and its Associate CHES) BEHLEIIE
or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities ARG LERE R & B#%HE5(2020)
as Current or Non-current CHES) BBRBIERY
and related amendments BENE
to Hong Kong HEEBE
Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and BREHENZ 6% mE WEREE
Equipment — Proceeds (1BET ) -BEFARZ
before Intended Use? FriS 3R

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts ARG EREITR BEAH
— Costs of Fulfilling CHEN - BT KM AR
a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BEMBREER ERMBREER
HKFRSs 2018-20202 (B3IAR) “Z-N\52

ke <2
W
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 RZTEZ=F—A—AXZERBHF
2023. B SER e
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZTEZ—F—A—AXZERBHF
2022. B SER S

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be E FFE B Bisk 2 1B FIA R B AR o

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. 4 RZTEZTFNA AR ZERBHF

EHAR £k e
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZEZ—F—A—AXZERBHF
2021. B SER e

The directors anticipate that the application of all new EEEERAARG REETEE

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact W HHEENEAMEERARETISH

on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseable REMBRREEEATE-

future.

56 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

Be2—F_FTF+_A=+—HIFEF

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if
such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GEMBBERNEREE (&)
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o R BREMS AT EFERER
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the FEFENEABIEABERIEE K ARE
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are HAFEFENEREZUSERF IR B
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 2RI B AT

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . %ﬁ&@au)\%ﬁﬁm Bn quEEIHH_IL/{
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity SHHEREEREENERT IS
can access at the measurement date; %Ef‘i (REgHE)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices . F2RMASBEREREELBBEERZN
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset MEMAIBEROHASE (Z1R/RNE
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and FEHRERIN) - R

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or . FIMMAHBBREEXBENTAE
liability. R ABIE -

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHX

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation FREZERAVBRREAZEZEGHEE

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. OO T - BREETAEII ZEWEEM

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years IR BFENERER-

presented, vales otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Be2—F_FTF+_A=+—HIFEF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company has power over the investee; is
exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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4.

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies
as business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange and,
all acquisition-related costs are expensed. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting.

The financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity amounting purposes are prepared using uniform
amounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’'s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group's share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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4.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the requirements
of HKAS 36 are applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill, if any) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from i) sale of nonwoven fabric products and ii)
supply and procurement operation are recognised at a point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally, on delivery of the products. The normal credit term
is 30 to 120 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products
and supply and procurement operation

Revenue from manufacture and sale of nonwoven products
and supply and procurement operation are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being at the point the
products are delivered to the customer and the customer has
accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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4.

—E_TFF A=+ —HIFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
As a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the financial statements would not
differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premise that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHHBER (&)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HneE (&)

As a lessee (Continued) EREARBA (E)

Right-of-use assets ZHEEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRAEEENKAELE:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease . HEBBNYZTELE:
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the . REAB BB 2N ERNESNEEN
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; FOREMBERREEERE:

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and . REBMEAENEMIEEERS &

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . REBRIFREBHREHEEE BERA
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring Tt EREBEEZEHEKRAR
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying W& PR E M AR RE T 2 AR MO RR AN 5t o

asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement REBRHERK AH (BNEBEEE]H#F
date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available AOBM BEREAEESE-FREESERX
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any KRR EFITE MREBETZ Uitf
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted EBEMNAWENT2ELARE-

for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B2 —E_FTF+ - H="1+—HIFEF
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include: (Continued)

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, using the straight line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate amounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

4.

FTESEHEE (&)

M BERRE
FrEWE BMER&
RIERE B -

BIERAR R E R

EE‘EE’UEXﬁ@%EﬁEE*%&E@%’éEEﬁ
HEFARRETRIERTERENEEX
K WE BMERRBRAEBERELNH
Pl RRERS —RRELHE
BEAEALEMEE KRR PR KA
BREBIZEXHEERBEHARERYE
T B5 K2 R 88 PIT 15 O A B B 2538 0 - RIRZ TR X
1B A B RZE E R AR

ME - BERREBZHEREGFAIERE
HIEMERATREE UAMBEEK A
R EAFHNT

gF 304
5 I i 25 124
qE 84
R B REE 64
THEMERE 54
AFEAFHERTES EZREREHRETR
HERAER(EA) AR EENTAE
RARRELE ST o
ME - BMEREEBENLERRELEFS
RZEEBHTSEETMBBCEF
RIEER- LEXEEVE BELXHE
BEACZESBRHENBSRERZEENR

ACHEAHET UTREABEREMS
E S RAER

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (the “CGU”) to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwiill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of the
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attribute to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to application
of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains or losses”
line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL"”) model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, bill receivables, other receivables and cash
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financial component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 180 days past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For collective assessment the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, trade
payables, accruals and other payables and lease liabilities) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

Foreign currencies
i.  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
companies now comprising the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the company operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi, which is the Company’s presentation currency
and the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiary of the Group. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars. The directors consider
that choosing Renminbi as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets

and liabilities are reported as part of their fair value gain
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHE(£Z)
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

iii. Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to owners’ equity. When
a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assets in Hong Kong dollars to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Renminbi) are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in foreign
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company'’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for
all its PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic
salaries predetermined by the local governments. The
state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the
entire retirement benefit obligations payable to retired
employees and the Group has no further obligations
for the actual retirement benefit payments or other
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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4.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is recognised immediately to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-F-FF+ A=+ HLFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or entity is preparing the financial statements of
the Group;

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (2).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHE(£Z)

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (2)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group's parent.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for expect credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in note 6.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are RMB44,382,000 and
RMB8,551,000 respectively, no impairment losses were recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed in notes
18 and 19.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Provision of inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories.
Allowances are applied to inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the cost of inventories. The identification of slow-moving
stock and obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement
and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the
inventories.

Impairment of interest in an associate

The management of the Group carries out review on
impairment on the interests in an associate whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of the value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with its
carrying amount.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of interest in an associate
(Continued)

In determining whether the interests in associates is impaired,
it requires an estimation of its recoverable amount, which
represents higher of the value in use and fair value less cost
of disposal (market value). For the value in use, it requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the operations of the investment and from the ultimate
disposal, and a discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount of the Group's interest
in an associate is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the management
concluded that there was no impairment loss on interest in
an associate as the recoverable amount of the interest in
associates which represented the value in use was lower than
the carrying amount.

Valuation of share options

As explained in note 41, share option expense is subject to
the limitations of the option pricing models adopted and
the uncertainty in estimates used by management in the
assumptions. Should the estimates including limited early
exercise behavior, expected interval and frequency of open
exercise periods in the share option life and the relevant
parameters of the share option model be changed, there would
be material changes in the amount of share option benefits
recognised in the profit or loss and share-based payment
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TEMTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €I EDE
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBF T
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A FERIBZEHIEH
profit or loss CREE 27,142 23,415
Financial assets at amortised cost REBEHEKATHENEREE 183,351 186,513
Financial liabilities: EREE:
Amortised cost SRR 83,545 92,584
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEREBREEEEREEK
and policies
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial REEXBEH S HMEEERZIAMBE
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and % s E R (B EINEE R kR TFE
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk MERRREERR)  EERR &R
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management PEeER AEENEEEREE
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial BEITREMMBEH A AN RF
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects KBEAEBVBERENEET TN
on the Group's financial performance. &-
Management regularly manages the financial risks of the ERETHERASE 2 MKER B
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure RASE B BEBRBERLEL T
and the current operations of the Group, no major i EREWRETEREREE -
hedging activities are undertaken by management.
There has been no change to the types of the Group's AEER R T HEAE R fER K
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the HEBOAGEF@RKMN G R WL ET
manner in which it manages and measures the risks. fa] i 2 -
FEASEAGEESR QA “E_THR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

6.

926

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC”) and Hong Kong and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") and
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. The Company’s management
do not expect the net foreign currency risk from
these activities to be significant and hence, the
Group and the Company do not presently hedge
the foreign exchange risks. The Group and
the Company periodically review liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries
to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk with respect
to HKD as it is the functional currencies of the
respective subsidiaries in which their business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated.
Thus, no sensitivity analysis of HKD is presented.

At 31 December 2020, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2019: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year and total equity would have been
approximately RMB475,000 (2019: RMB473,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on USD-denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M mRME (A

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2020
—FE+ A=+ —AUFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

BE
6.

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rate relates primarily to its
interest-bearing bank borrowings. Interest-bearing
bank borrowings at floating rates expose the Group
to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at the date
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for
the year would decrease/increase by RMB400,000
(2019: RMB400,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure as result of increase/decrease
in interest expense on bank borrowings net off with
interest income from bank deposits.

Other price risk

(i)

Exposure to other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment. The Group currently
does not have a hedging policy in respect of the
risk exposure. In addition, the management of
the Group would monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &I H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B¥EREEEEREE (£)

28

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to price risk of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the financial
assets at FVTPL (listed securities) and derivative
financial instrument had been 10% higher/lower,
profit would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB918,000 (2019: RMB718,000). If the prices of
financial assets at FVTPL (unlisted investment) had
been 10% higher/lower, profit/other comprehensive
income would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB1,796,000 (2019: RMB1,623,000).

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank balances, trade, bills
and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group's financial assets.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL.
It also considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMWEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the
trade receivables from the five largest customers as at
31 December 2020 represented 64.2% (2019: 54.4%)
of total trade receivables, while 28.2% (2019: 23.4%)
of the total trade receivables were due from the largest
single customer. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

6.

SWMIA (&)
(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)

FEmE (&)

SEEREEERR AREEEED
EEBBRABERECERE FEHZ
N E M EE SRR R - BE AR BR AN BR 2 45 1 A
WEEMER LI NREBREHRE
HAENEENEZERNATKRE S
LR VRN EI kA SR e iE ) 0D
EER-BRUME ARARNEERAXE
SERNEERRD RERE-

AEEABRETEEAR AR=_2=
TE+__A=Z+-—"HEKRAEREFH
ZSFBEENE S HIEAEN2%
(ZE—NF:544%) MEKFAE
—BFEFMESHEBEHERE S HER
KEHI28.2% (ZF— N :234%) - &
EERBEUEBREEHSRAEAEEA
BEELENETR-

0 to 91 to 181 days Over
At 31 December, 2020 90 days 180 days  to 365 days 365 days Total
R-ZB-EBE+-A=+-H 0Z90A & 912180 181H ZE365H 365H M L @t
ECL rate BHEEBEX 0.2% 3.0% 7.2% 44.3% 11.3%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE(ARETT) 76,719 25,792 9,048 33,430 144,989
Lifetime ECL (RMB'000) 2HEHEEER
(ANEBTT) (132) (765) (653) (14,827) (16,377)
76,587 25,027 8,395 18,603 128,612
0to 91 to 181 days Over
At 31 December, 2019 90 days 180 days  to 365 days 365 days Total
R-Z-hAE+=-A=+-H 0Z90H & 91Z1808 181HZ365H 365A M @it
ECL rate BHEEBER 0% 1.2% 5.6% 37.1% 6.9%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEAE(ARETT) 42,487 44,940 25,704 19,220 132,351
Lifetime ECL (RMB'000) 2HBHEEER
NS ) - (530) (1,433) (7,131) (9,094)
42,487 44,410 24,271 12,089 123,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M mRME (A

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE
6.

—EE A=t ALEE

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is
no significant increase in credit risk on these other
receivables since initial recognition as the risk of default
is low and, thus, ECL recognised is based on 12m ECL.

100 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. £RITA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B¥EREEEEREE (£)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) FEmRE (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables that RZEZZTEFR-_ZFT-NLF+ZA
are individually significant have been separately assessed =T—H 2REBEANEREIR
for impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments HERBEB TG AEERERP
on the recoverability of the receivables based on the EakBE AALAELBERBAATL
background and reputation of the customers, historical BUAREERTHEEN (FEBERE
settlement records and past experience, and also ZATHEMEE R R YR IE A A] U B 1
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable YE L E AR A
and supportive forward-looking information.
Other receivables Bt YW K E
For other receivables, the directors of the Company make HEMEWRIEMS  AAAEFER
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of BTEECS BIERUARBREE
other receivables based on historical settlement records, EBREMBETERNEEREEER
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative S H fh FE U R IE /9 7] 4R B 1 1T E ER
information that is reasonable and supportive forward- 18 B AT Ak o
looking information.
The movement of loss allowances for other receivables FRNEMERRENEBEEREBES W
during the year are as follows: e
Other receivables
H fh fE W 5K08
RMB'000
ARBF T
At 1 January 2019 —NE—H—H 67
Allowance for ECL EHEEEERB 2,346
Reversal of allowance for ECL TBHEEEBRERE (26)
At 31 December 2019 and *ﬂEJr_ﬁ_TL*EI&

1 January 2020 —ET-_ZEF—H—H 2,387
Allowance for ECL EHEEEERE 1,155
Reversal of allowance for ECL BHEEEERERE (2,341)
At 31 December 2020 R-B_ZF+-_HA=+—H 1,201

N ERERR AR NAERNE
#E R EUE - Bt B s EKGRIAME R
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BLERM2EARREEEE T AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are international and state-owned banks
with good reputation. Based on the loss rates, the ECL
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no loss
allowance was recognised.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on
the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial
liabilities including interest that will accrue to those
liabilities except where the Group are entitled and intends
to repay the liability before its maturity.

Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights within one year after the reporting
date. The maturity analysis for other non-derivative
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled
repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWMITA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B¥EREEEEREE (£)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBELEE (&)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=FBF+=-H=+—8H
Weighted Over
average On demand 1year but  Over 2 years Total Total
effective or within less than  but less than  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
TS EERZ —FH0E MENL AERRS
ERA= PR-F BLRWE BLREE mEARE BEHAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T

Non-derivative financial liabilities J{T4£¢HEAE

Trade payables BB SHE - 25,802 - - 25,802 25,802
Accruals and other payables FREGIEY g e - 11,408 - - 11,408 11,408
Bank borrowings BTN 3.99 40,612 - - 40,612 40,000
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.32 2,873 2,167 1,749 6,789 6,335
80,695 2,167 1,749 84,611 83,545
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-NE+=A=+—H
Weighted Over
average On demand 1 year but Over 2 years Total Total
effective or within less than  but less than  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
g EEXRK —FLE L3 RERRE
BERA=E PR—F BLRME BLRRE nepnE REAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTRT AR%TR  ARMTT  ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities JEf74&BEE

Trade payables ERE S508 - 30,563 - - 30,563 30,563
Accruals and other payables Bt EAREMEMNFE = 17,282 = = 17,282 17,282
Bank borrowings RITHER 4.79 40,651 - - 40,651 40,000
Lease liabilities HERE 5.28 1,686 1,430 2,077 5,193 4,739

90,182 1,430 2,077 93,689 92,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMWEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively;

(i) the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow analysis is performed using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives;

(iii)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

1. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
and financial institution for identical assets or
liabilities;

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SRIH(#Z)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) EMIBAZLAFRE (&

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the RGEEHBRRKXERZ A FHETE

consolidated statement of financial position (%)

(Continued)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_FF+=-A=+-—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& Bl — wBl= FAEI= &5t

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR

Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEREZIEN
EREE 27,142 - - 27,142
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=-A=+-—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAl— FAl= FA= &5
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREBTIT AREFIT ARBTT AREBTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFERERIER
TREE 23,415 = = 23,415

104 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMWEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

6. &I A (£Z)

(c) EMIAZQFE(E)

REGEHBHRAXERZ A FHETE

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)
Financial assets Fair value as at
SREE RTIABHLTE
31/12/20 31/12/19
= —2-h%F
+=B=+-H +=ZB=t+-H
1) Financial assets at FVTPL Listed equity Listed equity
securities securities
RMB9,181,000 RMB7,180,000
1) BRAFERERIENEREE LEHRAE S TARAES

AR #9,181,0007
Unlisted equity
investments
RMB17,961,000
FETRARE
AR ¥17,961,000T

AR 7,180,0007T
Unlisted equity
investments

RMB 16,235,000
FETRARE
AE#16,235,0007T

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE
7.

—EE A=t ALEE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital and reserves. The directors of the Company review
the capital structure on a continuous basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the issuance of new shares as well as the addition of
new borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as
follows:

& AR E
AEFEEBHEERN UBRASEEANS TE
BEMPFELE RIS BEMEES T
2V E AREFREROF -8
Fe AEEBBRIERIFTIE

AEBZEARBRFEER (BRRITER
EREERE)ARAR T%ﬁﬁ)\ﬁéﬁﬁéﬁé(@
HREBTEARER) ARREF TR
HEARB AR MO EFEEEE
AERAREAREBRR FAEBESKREES
ZERBEBBBETHRINEET FTHEE
BERER-

EXBF/ELR
R-_FE-_FTER-FT-NAF+-A=+—8
BERE B EMT -

Debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

2020 2019
i —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
B 46,335 44,739
W R KE 176,064 176,113
BEARBELE 26.3% 25.4%
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B2 —E_FTF+ - H="1+—HIFEF
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7HER
Information reported to the Directors being the chief operating MEZ(MEFELERRE ([ETELERRE
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource ED)ERUDEBRLTEHIRENE
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on B EERAMNEEMAER -
the types of goods delivered.
The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows: AEENKERAZHRDFWT -
() the manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products (i) %L&fﬁﬁﬁﬁ SR E A A I E A B
used in automotive interior decoration parts and other SEESHMEM: &
parts; and
(i) the supply and procurement operation segment including iy HEREBSEST (REEEBRBRR
trading of rubber and food products. RBm) e
Segment revenue and results DEBAREE
Manufacture and
Supply and sale of nonwoven
procurement operation fabric products Total
RERFBLE RERHERGHER Bt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
R “T-NF ZBZBE —T-NF CZB-®F _TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARBTr AR%®TR ARKT:R
Segment revenue: WA
Sales to external customers HETNBEP 32,931 76,861 108,695 184,035 141,626 260,896
Segment results NHEE 2,027 (2,963) (6,416) (3,729) (4,389) (6,692)
Unallocated corporate incomes &% &2 BIAA 2,555 50
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 it 2 &5 % (1,979) (22,639)
Loss from operations BEER (3,813) (29,281)
Finance costs BEMK (2.:473) (2,201)
Loss before tax BB A EE (6,286) (31,482)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated A E2HAHFUWATIRBINEE P BIUA ©
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales for HE-_Z-_ZTFR-_FT-NF+_A=+—
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. B IEFE W &S FBRUA ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment results represent the profit from each segment
without allocation of interest income, fair value loss on
financial assets at FVTPL, share of result of an associate and
central operating expenses including staff costs, finance costs
and income tax credit. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment

of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

ASSETS BE

Segment assets NPEE
Unallocated corporate assets kAR ABEE
Total assets BERE
LIABILITIES =¥

Segment liabilities AHERE
Unallocated corporate liabilities &2 B A FE &
Total liabilities BRES

8.
Supply and

procurement operation

HERKBERE
2020 2019
ZECEF —n&
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FTR ARETT
26,924 39,876
4,816 8,261
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PEER (E)

PHBRAREE (&)
DEEEERTESEFNERA - ZATFE
RNIEHEVIEMNEREEZ A TFEERE B
BEAREERPRITEERA (BFEEIX
K BEKARFBRER)MNEB /RT%%-:?
Aot RMEELERRTEZRAS
BRI EDEERRNEEREE-
PTHEEREE

Manufacture and

sale of nonwoven

fabric products Total
HERHERGHER Bt

2020 2019 2020 2019

o33 -NE ZBIBE —T-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT AR¥TR ARET:R
254,480 245,825 281,404 285,701

33,900 36,861

315,304 322,562

101,316 99,825 106,132 108,086

33,108 38,363

139,240 146,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
F-FFE+ -+ —HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Bz
8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segment other than

bank balances.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other

other payables.

Other segment information

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other segment

information:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use
assets

Write-down of inventories

Allowance for ECL recognised
on trade receivables

Reversal of allowance
for ECL recognised on
trade receivables
Allowance for ECL recognised
on other receivables

Reversal of allowance
for ECL recognised on
other receivables

Loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

8. SHEH(£F)
THEEREE (&)
REZSHRERRDHBEOEER
- %Qﬂ@%ﬁéi(a%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ"%*
corporate financial assets including financial assets at FIRMeMEE REELFNER
FVTPL, interest in an associate and corporate cash and ANAE e RIRITA ﬁ?)?l\‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
DEEAE2HHEL -
- kKRrazsmaE(RREEFERRAM
than corporate financial liabilities including accruals and BRFREBE)IN MBEBEASREETZ
B o
Hit 5 HER
T AREERE M D FE RS
Manufacture and
Supply and sale of nonwoven
procurement operation fabric products Total
H“ERRELE HERHERGHER CL)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SE-RF _TONF ZBSEF “NE ZB-BF _TNF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARBTR ARSTR ARWTR AR¥KTR
BARX - - 292 7,481 292 7,481
NE BRERREBNE
- 152 6,058 6,129 6,058 6,281
TREEERE
377 352 1,861 1,534 2,238 1,886
FEMA - - 493 299 493 299
HRENE HE
RRNBHEE
EiRER 12 999 14,019 4,302 14,031 5,301
HENE HFE
BRNEBBHEE
BEERED (1,011) (12) (5,737) (253) (6,748) (265)
o E B
RRNBHEE
EiRERB 927 2,341 228 5 1,155 2,346
SR
BRNBHEE
BEEEED (2,339) @) V)] (24) (2,341) (26)
HENE BER
REEE/ ()
- - 12 (90) 12 (90)
“EZFHR

RESENHEESE A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. oMEM (&)
Revenue from major products and services REFTEEMREEHBA
Information about the Group’s major products is set out in BRAEBRETEZEERMERERMEES -
Note 5.
Geographical information HEER
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong. AEENEEMWBUAPERES-
The Group's revenue from external customers and information AT ASEERGIINBEPHIWAKREH
about its non-current assets by geographical location are BRMREDHERDEENER -

detailed below.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*
REIMBEEHEA ERBEE*
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF —E-%F —F-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT AR¥TR ARBETT

The PRC i 130,850 196,682 52,512 57,203

Hong Kong 8 10,776 64,214 421 59

141,626 260,896 52,933 57,262

* Non-current assets exclude interest in an associate and deferred tax e FRBEETEERBE AR NS RIETER
assets. HEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated
from one (2019: one) customer from manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products segment of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB15,933,000 and no (2019: one) customer
from supply and procurement operation segment of the Group
amounting to approximately RMBNil (2019: RMB40,253,000)
has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Revenue from major customers, amounted to 10% or more of
the Group's revenue are set out below:

Customer A! EEA
Customer B2 X F B2
Customer C! XEREC

' Revenue from nonwoven fabric products

2 Revenue from food products
Note:

The customers contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for both years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

RESENHEESE A

8.

DEER (E)
EHFTEEZFWNER
BE-_Z_ZHF+_A=+—HILEE &
AEBEHHTERBEERMBES BN —F
FEE(ZE—NF: —R)EEHNBRAHDAR
#£15,033, 000t R EASEEHERRBLE
PHENTBELEF(ZE—NF:—R)EHLE
HRAMAREZT(ZZT—LE: AR
40,253,0007) "B EEAEEBAW ARG
10% °

KEETEEFPHBA(EREEHEANI0%
A E)EFIAT

2020 2019
SE L “ThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR T T
_note ffst 26,671
_note ffst 40,253
15'933 _noteffitit
15,933 66,924
T EGmEREA
2 BRmKRA

BEPFEMOBRABERAERRKARI0% °

HE_T_ZFR_FT—NF+_A=+—
AEMEFE SEEt0E —TEHAEE
FIULA10% B IA o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

9. REVENUE 9. WA
The Group's revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric REBERAERRAERME REME DB
products used in automotive interior decoration parts and other BOMER BBRREMHIEE -

parts, rubber and food products.

An analysis of revenue by types of goods as follows: RERBAEDTHRALT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles BARAENESHT
— Sales of automotive floor carpets —REMBNEE 40,027 69,201
— Sales of other automotive parts — B RERGNEE 68,668 114,834
Supply and procurement operation: HERRBEL:
Sales of rubber BRBHE 8,366 1,844
Sales of food products RmiHE 24,565 75,017
Total revenue recognised at a point in time AR — A 2R
WA #HR 141,626 260,896
All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less, FrEBl=EN R —F AT REEY
as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the BHREERNEISENERETEZMAT 5
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not REREREGHNHORFELRERE-
disclosed.
10. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 10. Htl =8
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREBTT
Interest income FE KA 37 50
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets BATFERERIIENSHE
at FVTPL EEMDFEWRR (E18) 2,518 (6,713)
Others (note) HAth (H1:) 3,317 6,934
5,872 271
Note: Included the amounts is sales of scrap raw materials for the year Kt BE=-F-_ZF+=-A=+—HLFE B8EF
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB3,265,000 BER I E A A ARY3,265,000T (=T — AN
(2019: RMB6,920,000). F: AR#6,920,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

11. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's loss from operations is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following: 18 :
2020
—E-EF
RMB’000
AR®T
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM 2 750
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREBTE
plant and equipment 6,058
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREEERE 2,238
Expenses relating to short-term leases REHERS 232
Staff costs including directors’ BIRA(BEEFHH) :
remuneration:
— Salaries and other benefits — & REHME R 17,577
— Share-based payment expenses — R IR 1,002
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — iR & & 7l 5+ 2 it 7% 2,578
Cost of inventories recognised as cost of R A& K A M T EK A
sales 128,141
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BER&E
plant and equipment EiE (Was) 12
Write-down of inventories T & MO 493
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables EBWE ZRBENEREERRE
B 14,031
Reversal of allowance for ECL KBS RBENEREERRE
on trade receivables BiER D (6,748)
Allowance for ECL on other receivables HiERRENEREERSE
B 1,155
Reversal of allowance for ECL HiERRENEREERS
on other receivables BB (2,341)
Impairment loss on interest in associate ~ HEEE A B MR 2 REE B -
Research and development expenditure MR EABEL (FaET1)
(Note 1) 1,097
Note: Kiat -
1. The amounts included in cost of sales for the year ended 1.

11. BB

AEENKEBBRENR, (ER2) TH%E

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARET T
850

6,281

1,886
497

20,503
2,866
3,731

196,478

(90)
299

5,301
(265)
2,346

(26)
5,520

2,592

31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB1,097,000 (2019:

RMB2,592,000).

RESENHEESE A

BHE_Z-_ZTF+ _A=Z+—HLEERAE
RHEKEANESEHN R ARY,097,0007T (=
T—NF: AR%2,592,000T) °

I
A
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BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Interest expenses on convertible bonds

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Current tax Bl A % 18

Hong Kong N

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PRI ERER

([EmFH)

Deferred tax EAE IR

Credited to the consolidated statement  #F A4R& Bz N
of profit or loss and other Hfh2mEkak
comprehensive income (note 34) (Hf5E34)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment.) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2,000.000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
assessable profits of corporations not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.
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BERAFATREEN
RITEFWNEER

HEABENMEER

ABBRESNNE X

12. @E R

2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARET T
1,911 1,911
283 290
279 -
2,473 2,201

13. fIBHER
2020 2019
—EC-BE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARET T
- 73
(287) (355)
(287) (282)
(2,109) (1,024)
(2,396) (1,306)

RERSHEREBEBRES ([RELA
RESDRIINRER AEERASEE R
REGAREEBABMEAMEN -

NR-ZZE—NEZA=-+—HB FBLEEE
BAZZT—EFHBE (BE]) (BTHR)IEHE
=) ([ZEZR])  SIAMBFESHREGE -
ZEEN T NF=ZA -+ \BEEEK
BEE UTHRBAEERTIZE -REMEF
BEBEHE & EB8HKME3E 2 EH2,000000
T 2 FERR T A F 5 428.25% 2 Bl R B FL
I8 + T B 382,000,000 7T 2 F& &R B i A S 1%
16.5% 2 EHMTBE T HFAMEFNER
MEBEERZDEZ BB EERI6.5%
2R EGMTE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B2 —E_FTF+ - H="1+—HIFEF
13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 13. Fi18 ﬁa}fﬁﬁa (#&)
No provision for taxation in Hong Kong is recognised as there BE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=T—RHILFE &
is no assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2020. E’\\IEF’% REBUREF M EERE BB
B
PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on estimated PEGEMSRBRRETEAN 2EBERKEMN
taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of the Group HED REAETHEEENAEEHNF
with certain tax preference, based on existing legislation, B Bt &8~ B P BRER A 5T FE AR B U - LAE A
interpretation and practice in respect thereof. EFHE-
Pursuant to the enterprise income tax rules and regulations BEFECEMSHBORER BE_%
of the PRC, the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group's PRC ZEERZTE-NEFE+ZA=+—HLEFE"
subsidiary for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is REBWFENBARNERRECEMRSG
25%. HER25% °
The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the loss Fﬁ?%f)ﬂﬁi%iﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁf@ﬁéitkqj Bl > 3P 1S
before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows: MBEAEMSHEEROT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBF T
Loss before tax PR AT B (6,286) (31,482)
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate R B ERFEHRTTE25%
of 25% (2019: 25%) AE(ZE-NF:25%) (1,571) (7,870)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BEINMAIORBEZE
for tax purpose 4,567 5,086
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIEBENRBETE 285 967
Tax effect of share of results of associate FETEH*#%’A AEENTBTE (655) (840)
Tax effect of income that are not taxable 78R A KB 1557 £ (2,911) (12)
Over-provision in previous years BEFEBBEREE (458) (1,448)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M@ A &) R i = #) 52 & (1,653) 2,811
Income tax credit FrisBif e (2,396) (1,306)
At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been provided for RZEZEF+ZA=+—H AQAL
in respect of the temporary differences attributable to profits Rt M B LA B HX E’J ZE R MO A
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately R "106,936,000c (=T — L F: AR
RMB106,936,000 (2019: RMB106,009,000) as the Group is 106,009,00071:)mﬁuuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬂjmkfﬁﬁ
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary BiE AAASERAEEREEZEERD Y
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences B MERREZERTETSRA R RE
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. I
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

15.

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB3,890,000 (2019: approximately
RMB30,176,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 84,191,573 (2019: restated 79,626,240) in issue
during the year as adjusted to reflect the effect of the effect
of the share consolidation. Comparative figure have also been
adjusted on the assumption that the share consolidation had
been effective in the prior period.

Diluted loss per share

For the year ended 31 December 2019 diluted loss per share is
the same as the basic loss per share because the effects of the
Company’s outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 diluted loss per share
is the same as the basic loss per share because the effects of
the Company’s outstanding share options and conversion of
convertible bonds were anti-dilutive.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the Section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordnance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

14. ERER

EREXER

BREANBEBSBEDNRBERARREE ARG
FEEHEHARYE3 890,000 (ZZE—H
F:HARH30,176,0007T) RERND BITE
AR 2 ANKESE 15 #84,191,573k (ZZE— AN
F L EFT,626, 2400 ESH  KAE
UWRBMBHBEHZFE - LBEHFTHIEER
BROAHNBEREEER 2 RBEHFHE -

BREEER
BE_T-NFT-_A=t—BLFE"
E#EEERSREAANEEAR BaRA
DB A R TT (R AR AL S e -

HE-_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HLEE &
K@ EEEEGREANEERR EHNAE
ARAMEARITEEREREBRABRRESA
I ESE B -

15. EX RETTRAEREEHMH

REBEEBQBEHE3ISIMN KR AR (BE
EENZER)ROE2500T

Salaries and Retirement benefit Share-based
Director fees allowances scheme contributions payment expenses Total
E3he FoRmi BIRER RIS URBRERHHAR Rt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

SRSRE CTAF CESRE CTAT SRSRE CIAS CRSRE SI-NE CRS®E CEAF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBER ABETRL ARBTR ARTL ARMTR ARKTL ARMTL ARETL ARMTR ARMTR

Name of director ESpe
Executive director HITEZ
Zhuang Yuejin (Note (3)  HEB3E (M) 400 396 - = - = 100 = 500 396
Wong Ho Yin (Note (b))~ Z3&K (Hit(b)) - - 1,493 1,949 13 13 100 - 1,606 1,962
Xiao Suni L7 107 106 - - - - 100 - 207 106

Independent non-executive BV HHTEE

director

Mak Wai Ho LExR 107 106 - - - - - - 107 106

Ng Li La Adeline R 85 84 - - - - - - 85 84

Zhu Chun Yan KER 85 84 - - - - 100 - 185 84
784 776 1,493 1,949 13 13 400 S 2,690 2,738

Notes: Wit

(@)  Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of (a) HRELEEDAEARANERRITEHESR

the Company.
(b)  Mr. Wong Ho Yin is also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. (b) EEHEAEENMREARANYBHHEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and chief
executive as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
fell within the following band:

15. %?3 BEITRAEBRESFM
BHEZZ-_ZEFRERZTE—NF+ZA=+—
AEFE AEEHERAEEREETERA
BX MBS EABIBIEA SRS ATIA
AEEENEBHIIELBERAE - REE=
EZEFRZF-NFF+ZRA=+T—HLHF
B HMEEENELRERECANESNE
HEo

SEREEB(TEREZT)NMENFUT
HEN

Number of individuals

AH
2020 2019
. —F-AF
Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to T 3= AR¥895,0007T
approximately HK$1,000,000) (FAZ5 7 #91,000,0005% 7T ) 3 3

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2019: 2) directors, details of whose remuneration
set out in Note 15 above. The emoluments of the remaining 3
(2019: 3) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances BEARS& KR
Share-based payment expenses & 3 1< 3k i 2

Retirement benefits scheme contributions & K& F| 5t 2 4t 5k

RESENHEESE A

16. 2 BEMEREE
AEMRAEERNARLSSHMALBER
Z(ZE—NE MB)ES Mo BRI
REXHEIS B TERSHEMA+ (=
T—NE: ZR)NGMEIIMT

2020 2019

—EoEE —ET-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETR ARET T

564 621

- 1,075

203 224

767 1,920
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,000,000)

Senior management of the Group

The number of the senior management of the Group are within
the following band:

Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,000,000)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the non-executive
director, highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the non-executive director and highest paid employees
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

17. DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payments of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB
Nil).
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T AR¥895,0007T
(8% R #91,000,0007% 7T )

T = AR¥895,0007T
(#Z5 471,000,000 7T )

16. T EE=EMEES (&)

17.

e N T A TEHENR :
Number of individuals
A
2020 2019
3 3

rEEEREERE
AEBRRERBZABNFUATEHENR:

Number of individuals

AR
2020 2019
- —T-NF
1 1

BHE-_Z-_ZEFER-_ZE—NFF+A=+—
BEFER ASERERAFENTES &
SHMEEINME EAREMARNEH
FMAREBE RO ER IERBERME-
HEZZ-_ZFERZ—NF+ZA=1+—
BEFERN BEFVTESRERHNESE
EREXRERETAHE -

iR 2

EFTRARBE "T-TF+-A=t-
ALEERENEARE (ZE—A%F: AR
ME) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ BMERSKRE

Furniture
Plant and Motor and  Leasehold
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures improvement Total
BF BEREHR RE BRAREE HEWEH#E a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tn ARETr ARBTT AR®Tn ARETxR
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2019 RZFE-NGF—HA—H 10,067 81,536 4,339 2,400 2,880 101,222
Additions NE - 7,470 - 1 - 7,481
Disposals & - (3,675) = = = (3,675)
Exchange alignment EH AR - - 14 5 5 24
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NEF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-BRk
—TZZF-R—H 10,067 85,331 4,353 2,416 2,885 105,052
Additions NE - 290 - 2 - 292
Disposals HE - - - (18) - (18)
Exchange alignment B X AR - - (45) (15) (15) (75)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Ef
+=ZA=+-8 10,067 85,621 4,308 2,385 2,870 105,251
Accumulated depreciation 2iE
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE—F—H 4,362 38,822 2,427 1,227 2,150 48,988
Charge for the year FEXW 305 5,182 478 242 74 6,281
Disposals & = (401) = = = (401)
Exchange alignment ERACES - - 14 5 5 24
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-8BRk
“E-F%¥—-H—H 4,667 43,603 2,919 1,474 2,229 54,892
Charge for the year FEXH 305 5,137 305 237 74 6,058
Disposals HE - = = (6) = (6)
Exchange alignment EHRE - = (45) (15) (15) (75)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Z%
+=A=+-H 4,972 48,740 3,179 1,690 2,288 60,869
Net book value EEFE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
+=ZA=+t-H 5,095 36,881 1,129 695 582 44,382
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+ZA=+—8H 5,400 41,728 1,434 942 656 50,160

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of buildings
of the Group pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB5,095,000 (2019:

RMB5,400,000).

RESENHEESE A

M_ZE-FE+-_F=+—B AEEZLM
BRAEEX A ARYS,095000T(=ZZE—H
F: ANR¥5,400,0007T) B FIEAHIETT
& R E IR & o

A
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BE—

PR (AR

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19.

(Continued)

Impairment assessment

During the year, as a result of the unexpected poor
performance of a manufacturing plant, the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amount of that plant and machinery.
These assets are used in the Group’s manufacture and sale of
non woven fabric products reportable segments. No impairment
loss has been recognised for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets

has been determined on the basis of their value in use.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2019
Additions
Exchange alignment

At 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020

Additions
Disposals
Exchange alignment

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Exchange alignment

At 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020
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18. % -HWERZRME (&)

o AE FY 5

FRA HRLEEMFERRABINEE  KEHE
Eﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ%T%@%%tﬁﬁﬁéﬁ

Tfé&“% ﬁ

t=A

=t —HLEFE HEE

7_7¢&_T HE
R E

BER-FEEENAKROSHRENERER

EBE-
19. FRREE
Leasehold Leased
land Properties Total
FE L HEmE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EF T AR®EF T ARET T
2,552 6,417 8,969
_ 24 24
2,552 6,441 8,993
- 3,711 3,711
- (414) (414)
- (43) (43)
2,552 9,695 12,247
73 1,813 1,886
- 5 5
73 1,818 1,891
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMWEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. EREEE (£
Leasehold Leased
land Properties Total
HELTHb HEYH AFF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARET T ARBTT

Charge for the year FAZH 73 2,165 2,238
Disposals & S (414) (414)
Exchange alignment ME W A = (19) (19)
At 31 December 2020 R=-E-ZF
+=-—A=+—H 146 3,550 3,696
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2020 R=-ZE=ZTF
+=A=+-—~H 2,406 6,145 8,551
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZE—hI&F
+=ZA=+-—H 2,479 4,623 7,102
2020 2019
g e 3 —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTTT
Expenses relating to short-term leases MAEHERS 232 497
Total cash outflow for leases (note) HERSmHEE (M) 2,610 2,409
Addition to right-of-use assets EAREERE 3,711 S

Note: Amount includes payments of principal of RMB2,095,000 (2019:
RMB1,682,000) and interest portion of RMB283,000 (2019:
RMB290,000) of lease liabilities and lease terms ends within 12
months of RMB232,000 (2019: RMB497,000).

Lease liabilities of RMB6,335,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB6,145,000 as at 31 December 2020.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of leasehold land

pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB2,406,000 (2019: RMB2,479,000).

RESENHEESE A

Met ZcBEREINHAEEBENAE AR
2,095,000 (= — NL.F : AR%1,682,000
7T) R EE D AR283,000 (ZF—NF -
AR #290,0007T) - EIR12E A REHAA
R #232,0007t (=ZF— NF: AR¥497,000
JT) °

RZTE-_TF+-_A=+—HBH HEBEBA
R #6,335,000c i iHBAE HIEEE ARE
6,145,000 R -BREHARFENHEEE
ERERIN TR E R I E MR 25 o
HEEETRIEGRER-

R-E-—ZEFE+_A=+—HB EALXEH
BITEFRERFRNEAELHNEREL A
AR#2,406,000L (ZE—NF: AR
2,479,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 20. fIE A RIMFAER
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at R_E—EFR-_ZF-NF+=-A=+—8"
31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows: AARMIBAR ZFBTOT

Nominal value

of issued
and fully
paid ordinary
Place of shares/lIssued
incorporation/ and paid up/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name of Company and operation capital to the Company Principal activities
BRTRARE
BRz
AE/BRTR
HMRIL/ e/
ARER FEREERE ARER ARREEEEEOL TEEH
2020 2019
g 33 —Z-NF
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
E# MiE  EE fi&
Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior British Virgin usD1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Decoration Limited Islands (“BVI")
HEEBRES (E REER
((EB#BARES])
Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts Limited ~ BVI UsD1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EREBRER (e REERR
Joystar International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,170,177 - 100% - 100% Trading of nonwoven
Limited fabric products used
in automotive interior
decoration parts and other
parts
REERREERAR BiE 1,170,177 BERARAENHGR B
BAOMEOHER
Joystar China Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
RERBERERRAR B 1T BERR
Joystar Wuxi (note (i) PRC usD7,477,172 - 100% - 100% Manufacturing of nonwoven
fabric products used
in automotive interior
decoration parts and other
parts
HE (&%) (H:6) FE 74771112E T BERRNRENMER Lt
BOMBHHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMWEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Be2—F_FTF+_A=+—HIFEF
20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of shares/Issued
incorporation/ and paid up/
registration registered
Name of Company and operation capital
ERTRARE
BR2
HE/BRETR
TR #r/
NAEH BREREERE HAMEE
Link Excellent Limited BVI USD50,000
REERRES 50,000% 7T
Link Sharp International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
B 10,000/ 7T
Sinogate Energy Limited BVI UsD1
PR RER AT REERRES (E
Splendid Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$1
HRERAT BE BT
BB (LB)ERRA(note ()  PRC USD600,000
WRES (LB)ARAR(MEN) TE 600,000 7T
Loyal Brands International Limited BVI USD50,000
RELRRES 50,000% 1T
Giant Faith Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
B0 10,000/ 7T

Note:
(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under the PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of directors, principally attached the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in to

Nominal value
of issued
and fully

paid ordinary

opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

RESENHEESE A

20. B ARINEMAER (£)

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

ERRELRERDLL TEER
2020 2019
g o 32 —E-NF
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
EE BE  BX fi ik
100% - 100% - Investment holding
REER
- 100% - 100% Trading of food products
BEERM
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
BEERE
- 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
BEERE
100% - 100% - Investment holding
REZRR
- 100% - 100% Trading of food products
BEEAM
Aat -

(i) RIBPBEEREMALAIEBEDRE -

R EERR/EAEENFEELEER
REAZENAKEMBRR -EERRMH
JIHEMHMBARNFBEESEMBN TR

I
A
7
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-—F-_FE+-A=+—HIFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. REFE QR ER
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBF T
Cost of investment in an associate B &R F IR E BB
— Unlisted —3EETM 26,612 26,612
Share of post-acquisition loss and FElG U EE R EE
other comprehensive income, REAMEERA
net of dividends received (kB WIS
— Unlisted —FEm (4,352) (6,974)
Exchange alignment HE 5, 8 (1,630) (356)
Impairment loss REEE (6,916) (6,916)
13,714 12,366
During the year under review, an impairment loss on interest in EEFEN BRIUKESEARETRE

associates of approximately RMBNil (2019: RMB5,520,000 was
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the basis of material
decline in the recoverable amount which was below the

carrying amount and adverse changes in the market in which

the associates operated.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had interest in the Jr——s

following associate:

Name of Company

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

1EEE/\EIEEETELA&H§?%’A
TR REAEENGABREREMEZRE
U 25 5% R R
BT (ZE—hF: AR¥S5,520,0005T) °

—EFRZT—

RERMAETIZN

B N BIRE RS

SREBEOAR

AE+=A=+—8"

REBERTIBERRERER

Proportion of
ownership interest

Issued and
paid up capital

and voting power
held by the Group

Principal activity

HEmAREL BR rEEFBHEER
AR EB REEHH BARBRREK SR TEXY
2020 2019
ZBIBE —TNF
Prominent Alliance Limited BVI usD100,000 42% 42% Investment holding
RERRARES 100,000% 7T REERK
GEO Securities Limited Hong Kong HKD96,698,421 42% 42% Dealing and advising on securities
£ 96,698,421 7T E5R P REHA
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these B NRTERARRENZERG M BRE
consolidated financial statements. HIBR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
Be2—F_FTF+_A=+—HIFEF
21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. REEE QBRI ER (£)

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate is AT EHYEE R R ERBEE -
set out below.

2020 2019

—E-EE —E-AF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETIT

Current assets mEEE 36,219 17,420
Non-current assets EREBEE 35,113 22,451
Current liabilities mENBE (42,808) (15,843)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
2020 2019

—E-®R —FNF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETTT

Revenue & 2,074 1,135
Share of results for the year FEREESE 6,243 8,005
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEHEMEEERE - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEEBELE - =
Group's share of results of associates AEBEEGEHEDRES 2,622 3,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

#=E

21.

SR A=t AR
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Net assets of the associate BENRIMEEFRE

Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBREE QR
interest in the associate Ffr 7 1 Lt 131

Goodwill BEES

Impairment loss REEE

Exchange alignment [E 3 &

REBREE QR
fRmE A

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in the associate

Particular of impairment testing on interest in an associate are
disclosed below:

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to
the following cash — generating units operated by an associate:

- Provision of dealing and advising on securities business

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
recoverable amount of this cash-generating units has been
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by the
directors and valued by the professional valuer covering a five
year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2019: 12.9%)
per annum. Cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 2.4% (2019: 3.00%) growth
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.
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F 2

21. REFE AR ER (&)

m

LB TS E R B B AR A BT R AR R
R NRMERREAENEERNT

2020 2019
i —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
28,524 24,028
42% 42%
11,980 10,091
7,629 7,629
(5,520) (5,520)
(375) 166
13,714 12,366

REEERR 2 s BERRFBRELT

BB R ER D B =5
THREeELEM:

- %E{/\HM%EE&H&D@%%

HE-_Z-_ZFR-_ZT—NAF+=A=1+—
ALFE ZBRSELEMNIKROEET
BEFREBETELETY & EEERBE
FAAE EE A I AT B (B A (B ) FLF AP
FEEENERE S REEA WIEBFTF13.5%
ZE-NF129% )MBAITREFES
t-BBRFHM 2 RERENFEREBEE
RE24% (ZF— NF:3.00% ) HH - it
ERETBBEME L2 RPFHERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. REEE QBN RER (&)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are FREBFEEIMAZARRENT
as follows:
Budgeted market ~ Average market share in the period BEE S EEBEHREREZ T
shares immediately before the budget period. HEX MHEBE-RKRMAA
The values assigned to the assumption ZEBERBBELR

reflect past experience

Budgeted gross Average gross margins achieved in EEEHNE EEREERRNAHAER 2
margin the period immediately before the FHERNE BT
budget period which reflects the past wKE
experience
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2020 2019
—ERCERAF —F-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEF T
Raw materials Rt 15,233 17,106
Work in progress fE8m 1,160 1,360
Finished goods BIRK SR 14,790 14,133
31,183 32,599
During the year, write-down of raw material of approximately F A RMEHOR 8 A R #493,000T (=&
RMB493,000 (2019: RMB299,000) has been recognised and —NE: AR299,0007T) BRI & A K
included in the cost of sales in the current year. FEZHEKRA-

I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEWE 53R
R EREERE

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for ECL

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, net of allowance for ECL, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0290H

91 to 180 days 91£180H
181 to 365 days 181%365H
Over 365 days HBiE365H

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally ranging from 30 days to 120
days, depending on the creditworthiness of customers and
the existing relationship with the Group. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

128 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

23. EREZMRE

2020 2019

S L e

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBETF T

144,989 132,351

(16,377) (9,094)

128,612 123,257

BIEZHZEAH BKESIRENRERIWT (8
HBREBREEEEREBH) OT:

2020 2019

—E_EF —ET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETF T

76,587 42,487

25,027 44,410

8,395 24,271

18,603 12,089

128,612 123,257

AEBEHEFMNESGREEREE RIE
EEEELANEREASEANREEE 8
H—RNF308E1208 - NEER HEZEE
BAMzREREKFB-BPRTEHRBSR
ERETHEMN BREZGHREARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

Bz
23.

E-FEt At —HIFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the Group's
trade receivables were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD of
approximately RMB127,441,000, RMBNil and RMB1,171,000
(2019: RMB110,569,000, RMB12,171,000 and RMB517,000)
respectively.

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out

in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. %9?)’%ﬁﬁ%€?ﬁfb?£?ﬁﬁﬂﬁl%ﬁ%/ HHER
EHEEREES

Total

wmar

RMB'000

ARET T

At 1 January 2019 —NE—H—H 4,058

Allowance for ECL FEHEEEBRE 5,301

Reversal of allowance for ECL FEHEEEBRERRD (265)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 fnfﬁ+—ﬂ_+fE|&

—E-EF—-H—H 9,094

Allowance for ECL JEEEEEBEE 14,031

Reversal of allowance for ECL FEHEEEBRERR (6,748)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZTE-_EE+-_A=+—H 16,377

The loss allowances increased by approximately RMB7,283,000
for trade receivables during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been recognised for
trade receivables under ECL model of HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 was detailed in note 6.

RESENHEESE A

23. EREZR

XIR ()

E’\ 7_?¢+ A= +*EI ZKE@E’J
&%fc‘a‘ﬂﬁ"ﬁB\J,%W%}\Eﬁ%uuw,ooo
T ARBZITREARE1,171,000T (=
T—hF: AR®110,569,00070 AR
12,171,0007t & A R#517,0007T) °

BE_ZT_TFR-_ZF-NF+-_HA=+—
EIJtEE Z!S%lﬂﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁﬁxx&iﬁﬁﬂ

HEZZ-_ZF+_A=+—RHLEFE"

EWEZRENEBEBEEENOARE
7,283,000 BEAEHE_FT_TFR_Z
—NF+_A=+—BLEFELALEECDRE

BEM B RERE E‘J%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁm,ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
HREMESFEARRBEAEEERREE

B R B BT L6 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. ARRE -BREREMERRE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBET T
Trade deposits ESEe 9,962 16,165
Prepayments TE T RIB 3,038 8,532
Other receivables H i fE W RIE 11,174 13,621
24,174 38,318
Details of assessment of ECL are set out in note 6. FEHEE BB EF BN 6 -
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. RAFERBRIIENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Listed securities: FWmES:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LTHRAEFH 9,181 7,180
Unlisted investment: ELmRE:
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong EREBRFELMERE 17,961 16,235
27,142 23,415
Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market bid NEEDN2ERGMBEABRSREE 2
prices and quoted price from financial institution. WMEMEBTE -
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BE—

E-FEt At —HIFE

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

R RIRTTHEH

Cash and bank balances

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BT
United States dollars ETT
Euro dollars BT

At 31 December 2020, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB11,123,000 (2019: RMB6,940,000) were kept in banks
in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate.

RESENHEESE A

26.

iﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂ?j—mnﬁl%

MEERERERXRME

RERBRSEFEY

BRFERE RITHEF KR KEERT
BX -RERERERMTRENRNES

MRS EEYR ERE M ER TR ARIERE
BE RN -

2020 2019

—EBC-EHE —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

26,820 26,101

RZBE_BFR_T—-NF+_A=+—8"
Be MIRITHEBIBA T EEE:

2020 2019

—ECEF —NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARBET T

11,123 6,940

7,371 10,201

8,326 8,950

= 10

26,820 26,101

RZZEZZEFF+ZA=+—H KTEBUA
REHBELTFHRAFBIEANRITZRITLE
KB ANRE11,123,000 (ZE—HLF A
R %6,940,0007T) - AR HIAp INEH B
SR BIINE B RO REE SERNES
BHE -

FRRBITZRSBENRT
T BRI EREUA B -

BREARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_F_FTFf_A=+—HUFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
At 1 January 2019

Share consolidation (note (i)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each
At 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020
Capital reduction (note (ii))
Share consolidation (note (iii))

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.025 each
At 31 December 2020

Issued and fully paid:
1 January 2019

Share consolidation (note (i)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Capital reduction (note (ii))
Issue of share upon conversion of
convertible bonds (note (iv))
Share consolidation (note (iii)

At 31 December 2020

B
SHEEO T2 KRN
R=F-n%-A—R

BIVAG (0
SREE0SETNERR
RZF-AFt-A=+-BR
—2-25-A-A

BB (A7)
BRA B (B i)

BREEVETNLEER
R-BE-Z¥+-A=+-8

BRTRME:
R-ZE-NF—F—H

BB (HaE0)
-WE+=ZA=+-HBEk
“T-TF5—-fR—H
B (H2 i)
B R ESFMBETRG (HE)
A& B (B (i)

R-g-®Ft-A=t-8
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27. B
Number Amount Amount
of shares x| x|
HK$'000 RMB'000
BAEE FTAET AREFT
10,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
(8,000,000,000) = _
2,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
198,000,000,000 - -
(160,000,000,000) - -
40,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
1,990,656,000 199,065 163,359
(1,592,524,800) = _
398,131,200 199,065 163,359
- (197,074) (161,725)
79,626,240 398 350
(382,205,952) - -
95,551,488 2,389 1,984
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M BRI (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

—EE A=t ALEE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The 2019 share consolidation became effective on 27 December
2019 on the basis of every five issued and unissued ordinary shares
of par value HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company being
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value HK$0.5 each.

On 3 March 2020, the par value of the ordinary shares of HK$0.50
each is reduced to HK$0.005 each by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$0.495 each of the shares.

The 2020 share consolidation became effective on 30 September
2020 on the basis of every five issued and unissued ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company being
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.025
each.

On 2 September 2020, convertible bonds was converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,372,218 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,209,000) into 18,296,240 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.075 per share.

On 9 September 2020, convertible bonds was converted of the
principal amount of HK$600,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB529,000) into 8,000,000 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.075 per share.

On 22 September 2020, convertible bonds was converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,575,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,378,000) into 21,000,000 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.075 per share.

On 24 September 2020, convertible bonds was converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,425,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,254,000) into 19,000,000 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.075 per share.

On 25 September 2020, convertible bonds was converted of the
principal amount of HK$999,750 (equivalent to approximately
RMB880,000) into 13,330,000 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.075 per share.

FESEAHEEER QA

27. RA& (£&)
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(iii)

(iv)

—E-NFRODEHR-_Z-NAF+-A
T ERAEBRAR Eﬂx$¢‘£%ﬂﬁﬁ
BEONBTHERITRABTERRAHA—R
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RZTZZTF=A=RA ZERFIHEREE
0.495F TR BB IR A - B FREE0.508 T2
L 3P A% 7 E 18 H R = § A%0.005% T

T TERMDEAHNR-ZZE_TFENRA=TA
ERC A AR BIRA TR EMREE0.005
BTHERTRABITEBAREAHA—RER
E{H0.0258 T & MR BER -

RZZE-_TFHLAZA ABRRESFCKRER
BERR7H0.075B T A£1,372,218% T (18
B4 AR EE1,209,0005T) i 518,296,240
A& A& 15
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RZZEZZTFNLAZ+=—B ARBRELFDIK
BRESRKK0.075%8 T # A %1,575,000
B (HEREHARM1,378,000T) & A
21,000,0000% J& 15 °

RZEZTFNAZTNA ARRESFEIR
B E SRR %0.075%8 T # AN 41,425,000
B (HERHARY,254,000T) 8 A
19,000,000 B& 5 °

RZZE-_ZTFAA-+HB AHRBREAE
¥ BB &R A 19 0.075%8 T #5 AX £999,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

28. RESERVES 28. f#1#&

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Note:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of capitalisation
issue and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference between
the net assets value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
reorganisation during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation implemented in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares in 2010 and represented the difference between the nominal value
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate 10% of
its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year’s losses) to the
statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC Company Law.
When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised to offset prior year's losses or to increase capital after proper
approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. BN B S MR

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice BEEZAH ENESRENERE ST

dates, is as follows: ™~
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-AF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTTT
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 10,155 13,936
91 to 180 days 912 180H 1,970 893
181 to 365 days 1812365H 123 1,360
Over 365 days Hi#®365H 13,554 14,374
25,802 30,563

Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10
days to 60 days.

At 31 December 2020, trade payables are denominated in RMB
and HKD of approximately RMB24,821,000 and RMB981,000
(2019: RMB25,821,000 and RMB4,742,000) respectively.

ERESHRBEEH RN TF108=60H -

RZE_TF+_A=+—"H ENESZXK
EHARNMUARBERBLTBE 2580 EA
R ¥24,821,000 & A R#981,0007T (=

T—NFE: ARM25,821,000T Rk AR

4,742,0007T) °

30. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. Bt E AR H AL B RRIE

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREBTT
Accruals of staff costs FEEF B IR 3,428 3,842
Accruals of operating expenses EEtEER X 1,388 5,007
Payable to fixed assets vendor ENEEEEEHNIEA 642 642
Other payables Hfh FE T 5RIB 5,950 7,791
11,408 17,282
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31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The following provides information about contract liabilities

from contract with customers:

At 1 January

Revenues recognised during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as
a result of advance from customers
during the year

At 31 December

The contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to

31. ENEE

UTHEEFPANNEHNABZER:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Kn—A—H 16,086 11,978
FAERHBA (REW
AABHEE)
(16,086) (11,978)
FANRABRFBRELEN
AHEEEM
20,110 16,086
R+-—A=+—8 20,110 16,086

BEHBEEASBEERKEIBKREFPRE

transfer goods for which the Group has received consideration, BEEBERER - AHNABEER —FRE

or for which an amount of consideration is due from

customers. The contract liabilities would be recognised as REBFERBA -
revenue within one year. The Group recognises revenue when
“control” of goods is transferred to the customers.

In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the

contract sum as advance payment from the customers of the EREmIEEEMNRK .

sale of goods.

32. BANK BORROWINGS

136

Bank loans, secured
Less: Amounts classified under current
liabilities

Secured bank loan that contain a
repayment on demand clause or
due within one year

Amounts classified under
non-current liabilities

32. |ITEN

RREA - BEmE [E5E] BRTEPE

AEBBEAEFPUR—ELLANAHEER

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
IRITER BHEMA 40,000 40,000
B DEARBEENRIE
BIEREREBIER
R—FRI
BHEMIBITER (40,000) (40,000)
NEAERBEENIE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

32. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 32. RITER (&)

Carrying amount repayable: EEERFIEREE
— within one year —R—FR
Secured bank loan BEMIRITER

At 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings were secured
by charges over the Group's buildings and leasehold land of
approximately RMB5,095,000 and RMB2,406,000 respectively,
corporate guarantee is provided by an independent third party
and a personal guarantee is provided by the director of the
Company, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin. The weighted average effective
floating interest rate on the short-term bank borrowings is
3.99% per annum.

At 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings were secured
by charges over the Group's buildings and leasehold land of
approximately RMB5,400,000 and RMB2,479,000 respectively,
corporate guarantee is provided by an independent third party.
The weighted average effective floating interest rate on the
short-term bank borrowings is 4.79% per annum.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of bank's
borrowings are denominated in RMB of approximately
RMB40,000,000 (2019: RMB40,000,000).

RESENHEESE A

2020 2019
SE L o
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARBF T
40,000 40,000
40,000 40,000

RZE-_EF+_A=+—H RITEX
HAEERZFREAELHOIOARE
5,095,0007T & A R #2,406,0007C * — % 58
UBEZHRHEOATERARARABIESH
RS ARMEMEABRERT - QR
BRZMEFIERFBFERBTF399E -

RZZFE—hAhF+_A=Z+—8 BITEXR
MAEBEZFLAS LSO ARE
5,400,000t & A R #2,479,0007T  — % %8
VBT HREMDBIERERE - DR
BRZMEFHERFBFEBTFL79E -

MZZE_ZTEF+-_A=Z+—8B RKAR
BMABEZRTERZEAEONAAR
¥40,000,000c (ZE—NF: AR
40,000,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HEAE

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had lease liabilities RZBEZEFRZE-NF+=ZA=1+—8"

as follows: ArEBENEEGGHT:
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-AF
Present value Present value
of the minimum of the minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEHAERERE SEHEFERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBEF T
Within 1 year R—FA 2,608 1,477
After 1 year but within 2 years BB —FERMFA 2,021 1,294
After 2 years but within 5 years BBMFERAFTA 1,706 1,968
3,727 3,262
6,335 4,739
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

RZZE-NE—F—B
FAFEBE (A1i13)

At 1 January 2019
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 13)

At 31 December 2019 and R-E-hE+-B=+-BEK

1 January 2020 “E-2F-f-H
Recognition of tax from convertible bonds BRAIARES 2 HE
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 13) TAFEER (Mit13)
Release of deferred tax upon conversion of ARESFBRERR

convertible bonds BB

At 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF+-A=t-H

Note:

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB7,337,000 (2019: RMB6,197,000) available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams of the respective subsidiary of the Group which incurred the tax loss.

RESENHEESE A

34. EEBE

RAFERBAEFERBNIBELEHIAE
ENBEREEZEBHNT

Allowance for
expected credit
loss on trade

and other Convertible
receivables bond Total
EWE SR EWESK EWESK
HttREMES HeRENES HeXEnES
FEBERRE FEBERRE FEBEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
851 - 851
1,024 - 1,024
1,875 = 1,875
- (422) (422)
2,068 41 2,109
- 381 381
3,943 - 3,943

RZTZTF+-_A=t+—R A5EEFITHE
EHEARERREFNORDARBEBOARE
7,337,0007t (=T —NF : AR%6,197,0007T) ° R
EEBBEENAEBEBENEQRRIEFROT
AT M BT A ARG B IEERETR

HEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

#=E

—EE A=t ALEE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 7 July 2020, the Company issued 0.5% convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) with a principal amount of
HK$5,971,968 (equivalent to approximately RMBS5,252,000)
to an independent third party (the “bondholder”). Each
bond entitled the holder to convert to ordinary share of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.075 per conversion
share. The convertible bonds are intended to be utilized for
general working capital of the Group and repayment of existing
liabilities. The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds is the
date immediately preceding the second anniversary of the date
of issue of the Convertible Bonds that is 7 July 2022.

The Convertible bonds contain three components: redemption
option derivative, liability and equity elements. The redemption
option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. The equity element
is presented in equity heading “Convertible bonds-equity
component reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component on initial recognition is 26.59% per annum.
The valuation of convertible bonds was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group.

During the year 31 December 2020, the convertible bond
holders (“Bond holder”) has convert Convertible Bonds of
approximately 79,626,240 shares as at 31 December 2020. The
principal amount outstanding as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB Nil.

140 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

5. IR ES

RZZEZ_ZFEFLtAtH AAAME—
BYUFE=-F([BEFFEBAETAESE
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H0.0758 Tz B EER AR RN A LB
ZHEF-TMBRESFBRANNER —KREE
EehEERBERBE AIRRES IJHEEU%
EEMREERSRTAEAMABT 2/ —H
B—FE=—=—FtHAtR-

BB EFEE —EAKA D BEIEEE
TTETR BERESSD -BEEERD
ilﬂﬁ"¥ﬁ2+§ AP EEHRIERE
Rt an 20N Es [ RRES-#S
FHIBER-BEBDNEER ZEREF
R 126.59%  AIRRESF 2 HETIRELRE
EYEBAE s BUABRRERGLEMET
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BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 35. AR ES (&)
Liability Equity
component component Total
sEHS ERBH &3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 R-_Z_ZF—-H—H - - =
Issue of Investor convertible BITIRESE

bonds AR ER 2,847 2,559 5,406
Initial recognition of deferred Min TR AR E 5 6

tax liability from convertible BEERIERE

bonds - (422) (422)
Effective interest charged BRNERAL 279 - 279
Interest payable FET ) 8 (279) - (279)
Conversion of convertible EmAMRES

bonds (2,847) (2,137) (4,984)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-FF

t=A=t+-H = - _

RESENHEESE A
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BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36. @& ZBHELNWEBYEE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flow were, or future cashflows will be classified
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

TRALAEERETHELNREZEE
BRACIIRCED BRETHELNE
BERATREIARAEREBLN AEB LK
AHERERDVEABETHNEE-

Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HE&E RITE R a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT AREBTT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—HA—H - 40,000 40,000
Accrued interest FEETF & 290 1,911 2,201
Interest paid BEAFLE (290) (1,911) (2,201)
Additions to lease liabilities HEBERE 6,421 = 6,421
Financing cash inflows BMERESRA - 40,000 40,000
Financing cash outflows BER LMD (1,682) (40,000) (41,682)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—N%F
+=-A=+—H 4,739 40,000 44,739
Convertible Lease Bank
bonds liabilities borrowings Total
ARRES HEAE RATEN &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT ARBT R ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_TF—HF—H - 4,739 40,000 49,730
Accrued interest JERTH) B 279 283 1,911 2,473
Interest paid BRFE (279) (283) (1,911) (2,473)
Issue of convertible bonds BT RRES 5,391 - = 5,391
Conversion of convertible bonds & #2 7] # i§ (& % (5.391) - - (5,391)
Additions to lease liabilities HEBEARE - 3,711 - 3,71
Financing cash inflows MERERA - - 56,000 56,000
Financing cash outflows MERESRL - (2,095) (56,000) (58,095)
Exchange alignment (R - (20) = (20)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE=F
+-A=+—H - 6,335 40,000 46,335
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37.

38.

39.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group has no material capital commitment as 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain property, plant and
equipment (Note 18), leasehold land (Note 19) of the Group
were pledged as collateral for secured banking facilities granted
to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
are members of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages
to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of this subsidiary. The only obligation of this
subsidiary with respect to the central pension scheme is to
meet the required contributions under the scheme.

RESENHEESE A

37.

38.

39.

ERERE
AEER-T-FF+-_A=t+-BARE
REARAE(ZT—NF: ARBEL) -

EERHA
R-ZF_ZFR-_F-NF+A=1t—8"
AREETYR BER&E (HF18) AR
MELH (HEFI19)BEERERARRERE
RBMRITRE 2 E

BIREFRE
AEERBEESRHELESHEGINAES
EEAEREER BRI MERATESE
([aFEeFTE]) AEBEMmARBESF B 2 #
BIRBEEFERIEZS%tE  §LE
EF AR LR A15008T - EERARES
AEIEHfERE  IRBEEMA -
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

41.

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material transaction with related
parties during the year.

Compensation of key management
personnel

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Group's directors and the senior executive
is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term benefits
Employer contribution to

pension scheme
Share based payment expenses

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date
of the Scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to the eligible participants, including but not limited
to, any Directors (whether executive or non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employee (whether full
time or part time) of the Group or any other person, who has
contributed to the Group.
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0. EXBEFRS

BRESMBRRANEMBORENR H R E
BN FAREEEBETITAEANTERR
5o

FTEEEBEAEBCZHE

IZEBEABZME BRENETEBES
REHRITBRAESBRIT:

2020 2019
—EC-EE —E—h4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREF T
2,277 2,725

13 13

400 -

2,690 2,738

41. R EFHE
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

a1. BIRERT & (F)

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. At 31 December 2020, an aggregate of 12,760,000 share
options granted under the Scheme remained outstanding,
which represented approximately 13.4% of the issued share
capital of the Company. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant
as may be determined by the Directors. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the grant of
the options; (ii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of
the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

RESENHEESE A

BBZTEEL 2 BREEBITER 7] 7%
AZBRHBERSTBBEARABRERZLE
BEAZBEBITRAI0% - X ERABERE
FOETREAEXTSBARRERARRAY
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 41. BRESTE (#&)
Details of the movements of the share options granted by the AATRBEREFIROMEREARD
Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme from the date AHIRRMEBFENT -

of grant are as below:

Movement during the year

FREH
Outstanding
Outstanding before share Outstanding at
at 1 January consolidation 31 December
Date of grant 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed (note (ii)) 2020 Exercise period
gt 223 RROEHAT R-B-%2fF
-A-B HA{THE t=A=+-H
R AH i RATHE 2R [SEig:d BAN (BE (i) MATE TEH
Category 1:
BRI
Directors
%
Zhuang Yuejin 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to
R “Z-ZFRATERA 14 May 2022
“Z-T5TA+AHAZE
—Z-—#RA+WA
Wong Ho Yin 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to
BEA ZZ-Z5RA+AHA 14 May 2022
S R =k
—Z-_ERATHEA
Xiao Suni 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to
H & e “Z-TFRATAA 14 May 2022
“Z-ZFEATHEAZRE
“Z--FRATMA
Zhu Chunyan 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to
RER —Z-ZFRATIRA 14 May 2022
“Z-T5TA+AHAZE
—Z-—#RA+WA
Total Directors - 15,920,000 = = 15,920,000 3,184,000
by
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mEMBRRMEE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-FF+-A=+—AULFE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 41. BRESTE (#&)

Movement during the year
ERED

Outstanding ~ Outstanding

Outstanding before share at

at 1 January consolidation  December

Date of grant 2019 Granted Exercised Lapsed (note (j) 2019
RZB-1F REOANE R-F-1%

-A-A HAITE i

REAH HATE BRE Bk BA% (B BEGE
Employees and others 31 May 2017 138,000,000 - - (82,800,000 55,200,000 11,040,000
EERER Z3-tFRAZt-8

14 November 2017 199,000,000 - - - 199,000,000 39,800,000

“2-t£+-A1EA

4 April 2019 - 120,000,000 - - 120,000,000 24,000,000

ZI-N\FRARA

15 May 2020 - - - - - -

ZE-TFIATER

Outstanding  Outstanding
before share at
consolidation 31 December
Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (note (i) 2020 Exercise period
RZB-%%F
RBB&EHE =t
HA{TR =t-8
BRH B BEM  (HE6)  BREE GEA
- - (11,040,000) - - 31 May 2017 to 30 May 2027
ZF-tFRAZ1-RE
Z3-tFRRZ1E
- - (39,800,000) - - 14 November 2017 to

13 November 2027

- - - 24,000,000 4,800,000 4 April 2019 to 3 April 2029
S-NEMAMBE
ZNEMA=ZR

23,880,000 o - 23880000 4776000 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022
FIATREAR
ERATHEA

Tota\ 337,000,000 = - - 374200000 78,840,000

23,880,000 - (50,840,000) 47,880,000 9,576,000

Note: (i) The Share Consolidation of every five issued and unissued
existing shares of par value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital
of the Company into one consolidated share with a par value
of HK$0.5 each was effective on 27 December 2019. The
corresponding share option and exercise price were revised.

(i) The Share Consolidation of every five issued and unissued
existing shares of per value of HK$0.005 each in the share
capital of the Company into one consolidated share with a per
value of HK$0.025 each was effective on 30 September 2020.
The corresponding share option and exercise price were revised.

The fair value of share options were calculated using the
Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Ba - () Bt & Of B A R RIRR A F R E (501
ATHESARSEITRABETREERD
AHR—REREMESETHE H K
A BZTE-NAF+ZAZtEHEK
HEBRERITEEDKER -

iy BROAHA/BARARATERERER
EH0.0058 TME BT RABITHRAR
DAafA—REREE.025BTTHA ff
Bty R—ZE-_TFAA=+THBER
REBRERITEBRDEET-

ERENATFEFRA -—EARNTE ER
FFARE AZEWT

2020.05.15 2019.04.09 2017.11.14 2017.05.31

b o 32 “E-NF “E-tf “E-tF
Date of grant R AH LA+EA mANE +-AtmWmA EA=+-H
Grant date share price R RSN ROER HK$0.07487L  HK$0.067%7L  HK$O.MM1BIT  HK$0.1415 7T
Exercise price before Share Consolidation R & GHATMITREE HK$0.0857% 7T HK$0. 1387 HK$0.1124% 7L HK$0.1442% 7T
Exercise price after Share Consolidation BRiDERENTEE HK$0.425% 7T HK$0.5% 7T HK$0.562% 7T  HK$0.721% 7T
Expected volatility %E,HM i 88.78% 75.596% 80.272% 80.169%
Expected life EHER 2 years & 10 years 10 years 10 years
Risk-free rate ERBAX 0.342% 1.559% 1.763% 1.243%
Expected dividend yield TRER 8 e & 0% 0% 0% 0%

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the equity-settled
share-based payment were approximately RMB1,002,000
(2019: RMB2,866,000).

FESEAHEEER QA

BHE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—RHLFE"
NESEETURMDAER I HHRIELY
A AREN1,002,000c (ZFE—NF: AR
2,866,0007T ) °

I
e
I
A
7
-
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e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

42.

148

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
As at 31 December 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Right-of-use assets

Current assets
Prepayments and deposits
Amounts due from subsidiaries
(note 1)
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves (note 2)

Total equity
LIABILITIES

Non-current liability
Lease liabilities

42. XD T BRI K 2 EHR

R-ZEBE-ZEHF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
BE
ERBEE
KB RARRIEE 18,760 18,760
FHEEE 222 31
18,982 18,791
HREBEE
ENRERES 121 161
JiE U B BB R R R (B RET)
50,493 95,221
Be RIRITTE R 806 60
51,420 95,442
BEHAR 70,402 114,233
B
EATBEEANERERRFHE
& A< 1,984 163,359
E (MsE2) 67,336 (53,477)
EREH 69,320 109,882
=R
kRBEE
HEaR 33 =
33 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 42, KR A BRARZER (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

2020 2019
—E-FE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBET T
Current liabilities REEE

Accruals and other payables FE 5T B R K H fth f& A~ 58 856 4,319
Lease liabilities HEBE 193 32
1,049 4,351
Total liabilities S EAHE 1,082 4,351
Total equity and liabilities ERkaEdes 70,402 114,233
Net current assets REBEEFRE 50,371 91,091
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 69,353 109,882
Net assets EEFE 69,320 109,882
Approved by the Board of Director on 29 March 2021 and RZEZ—F=AZt+hhBHESSHEL

signed on its behalf by: ATIIALTREES:

Zhuang Yuejin Wong Ho Yin

AERE BFHER
Director Director
2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FTF _H=+—HIFE

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(M

)

42, AREHBRRARZER (&)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,

interest-free and recoverable on demand.

Movement of the Company's reserves

At 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Share based payment expenses

Transfer of share option reserve upon
the lapse of share options

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Share based payment expenses
Transfer of share option reserve
upon the lapse of share options
Capital reduction (note 27)
Issue of convertible bonds
Issue of share upon conversion of
convertible bonds
Initial recognition of deferred
tax liabilities from convertible bonds

At 31 December 2020

RZF-NE-A-A
FRER
FEAMZAKS

FREEABRLER
TR BB 2
BRERREERBIERR

RZE-NE+ZA=+-ARk
—Z-Z5-f-H

FEFE

FEEMREBE

FREABELER
BRANHER
BREAREERRIERR

TRABIE (FizE27)
BmakES
BRTAREFMEITRD

R ERAARERD
ERHERR

RZEZZ§+-fA=+-H

Bat -

(1 EEREBARRAAFEZHLE BEF 28

RigZskigm e
(2) ARRFEEZEY
Convertible Foreign
bonds-equity currency Share
Share  Contributed  component translation option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES -
R EE AABH ERBIRE NERERE BRERS 2iEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  AREBTL ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
137,996 17,219 - 21,502 21,353 (251,504) (53,434)
- - - - - (5,075) (5,075)
- - - 2,166 - - 2,166
S = 5 2,166 - (5,075) (2,909)
S = = = 2,866 S 2,866
- - = = (6,102) 6,102 =
137,996 17,219 = 23,668 18,117 (250,477) (53,477)
- - - - - (43,615) (43,615)
- - - (3,299) - - (3,299)
- S o (3,299) = (43,615) (46,914)
- - - - 1,002 - 1,002
- - - - (15,251) 15,251 -
161,725 = = = = = 161,725
- - 2,559 - - - 2,559
5,000 - (2,137) - - - 2,863
- - (422) - - - (422)
304,721 17,219 - 20,369 3,868 (278,841) 67,336
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Fade)

PR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE
43.

44.

45.

46.

—ECFFF A=+ —HIFE

NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the equity-settled
share-based payment were approximately RMB1,002,000
(2019: RMB2,866,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of approximately RMB3,711,000 and approximately
RMB3,711,000, respectively in respect of lease arrangements
for office premises and factories.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures have been adjusted on the assumption that
the share consolidation had been effective in the prior period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 February 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on
a best endeavour basis, up to 71,663,616 placing shares at a
price of HK$0.32 per placing share. The placing shares would
be allotted and issued pursuant to the specific mandate to be
obtained at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on
15 April 2021.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2021.

RESENHEESE A

43.

44,

45.

46.

F(RERS
BE-_ZE-_ETF+-_A=+—RHILEE"
NEREET ARG AER I AOREY
ARM1,002,000 (ZE—NF:ARE
2,866,0007T) °

HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE &K
SEEBARAEMENMBENHELHNE
AEEERHEEEZIERRENINAL
AR®3,711,0007C R A R#3,711,0007T ©

BB T
EBREFOERRA AR BERBD AR
ZBRE AR

REHBSEE

RZZEZ—F A+ "B AQRHEEE
REBITURERSE Bt 227 EB &K
HRESBEERERBRELARERS
71,663,616 B & M fn TR ECE R D ER
BB -BEERMNBRENR=-ZZ=_—F
MA+HHBRAMNBREBANAS FESZHE
BT AR B 34T -

BRETRESUBEX

BAEVBBRENR-_TE-_—F=A=+hA
BEESHERRENE-

N
I
4
H
#
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERHE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets LA TN AAREBE L Ty EEHFR 2 2 T35
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in the note ¥ 4&HEENBEHE:
below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—BHLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RF ZFL£F ZE-N\F ZT-NF ZB-EF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT AR®TT AR®TR

Revenue A 207,824 227,562 194,527 260,896 141,626
Gross profit £ 7 25,962 22,637 17,959 23,940 13,485
Loss before tax AR (135,933) (234,485) (63,636) (31,482) (6,286)
Loss for the year ZN/NEIEZEDN
attributable to owners BIEFEEE
of the Company (133,580) (236,820) (64,925) (30,176) (3,890)
Basic loss per share BREXRER
(RMB cents) (restated) (AREBS)
(&) (7.6) (12.0) (16.3) (37.9) (4.6)

As at 31 December
R+=BR=+-—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF E—+EF —T-N\F —T-NF ZBEHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR%®TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 292,055 125,148 69,749 71,503 70,590
Current assets MENVEE 327,471 254,694 255,432 251,059 244,714
Current liabilities BB E 125,681 123,775 126,432 143,187 135,513
Non-current liabilities ERBAE = = = 3,262 3,727
Net assets FEE 493,845 256,067 198,749 176,113 176,064
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